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Corporate Information (continued)
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Chairman’s Statement

EFHE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Chiho-Tiande
Group Limited (& Xi&EEBR A7) (the “Company”), | am
pleased to present the audited interim results of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the six months ended 30 June 2010
(the “period”) following its successful listing on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 12 July 2010. With limited
natural mining resources and increasing world demand, various
industry reports have indicated that future supply will not be able to
keep up with future demand and scrap metal recycling is regarded
as a key solution to satisfying future demands and environmental
concerns. To capitalize on such market opportunities, the Group
continued to place strong emphasis on capturing and securing
supply of raw materials from proven sources of scrap metal through
its well established overseas procurement network. We believe our
current strategy will allow our Group to build on its solid foundation
to be a leading player in the rapidly expanding scrap metal recycling
business and also establish our position as a leading scrap metal
recycler in China.

BUSINESS REVIEW

With continued improvement in market conditions in China and the
gradual re-establishment of a relatively stable pricing environment,
the Group recorded strong growth in revenue and exceptional overall
profitability for the period as compared to 2009. During the period,
the Group’s revenue increased from HK$675.6 million in the same
period of 2009 to HK$2.44 billion, this represents an increase of 2.6
times over the same period last year and also exceeded the 2009 full
year revenue by 4.5%. Compared to the net loss of HK$16.3 million
recorded in the first half of 2009 (without taking into account the
HK$304.3 million write back of the inventory provision made as at 31
December 2008, which provision amounted to HK$308.6 million, as
a result of our inventories being stated at net realisable value instead
of at cost (the “Inventory Provision”)), the Group achieved a net profit
of HK$156.9 million (after taking into account a one off charge for
listing cost of HK$21.0 million) representing a net profit margin of
6.4%. With the write back of the Inventory Provision in the first half
of 2009, the profit attributable to Shareholders in that period was
HK$212.5 million representing a decrease of 26.2% when compared
with HK$156.9 million recorded in this period.

The net profit of HK$156.9 million represents an increase of 3.2%
over the forecasted consolidated profit of HK$152.0 million as stated
in our listing prospectus.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EFEHE ()

BUSINESS REVIEW(continued)

Since the sharp collapse in the world metal prices during the fourth
quarter of 2008, the market prices of our Recycled Metal Products
have remained at a lower level in the first half of 2009 resulting in
overall gross loss of HK$55.3 million (without taking into account
the write back of the Inventory Provision). With the strong recovery
in world metal prices since the second half of 2009, the Group
achieved a strong overall gross profit and net profit of HK$276.2
million and HK$156.9 million in the first half of 2010, respectively.

With the volatility of world metal prices gradually easing and the
gradual re-establishment of a relatively stable pricing environment,
the Group had increased procurement volume to cater for its
processing needs through its well established overseas procurement
network since the second half of 2009. During the period, the
Group sold over 230,000 tonnes of its processed products within its
three business segments combined. This represents an increase of
132.3% when compared with just over 99,000 tonnes in the same
period of 2009.

Despite the fact that certain major metal prices including copper
scrap and steel scrap have recovered strongly in the first half of
2009, prices have not quite reached the pre financial crisis levels.
Although easing gradually, price volatility remained high especially
in May and June this year, the Group still managed to achieve an
overall gross profit margin of 11.3% which is higher than the overall
gross margin (without write back of the Inventory Provision) of
10.5% achieved in the full year of 2009. This was mainly due to the
Group’s ability to actively identify and separate metal scrap that can
be further processed to maximise the value realisable from such
materials. During the period, the Group had continued to follow its
usual practices of consistently buying mixed metal scrap and selling
its recycled products in accordance with its processing ability so
as to mitigate the short-term impact of price volatility on the overall
performance of the Group.

Basic earnings per Share amounted to HK$0.21 representing a
decrease of 25.0% when compared with HK$0.28 in the same
period of 2009. Without including the write back of the Inventory
Provision, basic earnings per Share would have been increased
substantially to HK$0.21 when compared with the same period of
2009 which recorded a basic loss per Share of HK$0.02.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EFEHE ()

OUR PROCUREMENT NETWORK AEENRBRA®K

We are the largest importer of Mixed Metal Scrap used for recycling, 1&ZABIIRS(REPIERE DB ETE - K
reuse and processing in terms of the total import volume as &EEABEEESEBEDELR - BREH
approved by the Ministry of Environmental Protection in China. We — &INTA® 7 & AEDR - NEBERLAEL
import nearly all of our Mixed Metal Scrap and have, over the years, 4 RAESBHEEDNE  BRZERE
developed a strong international procurement network which covers &7 s KB B FRERE R - B REON - 4t
Europe, North America, Oceania and Asia. Our network of suppliers 3 « AJFMN ZIaN o /BEER S HITTE K -
was mostly established and developed by us leveraging on our ARE&EBE KE D HFERALS T B 1TEN L3
experience in the industry. With our good business practices, we & - RZEEMFFEHEREFNZSETE] - FK R
have enjoyed good business relationship with our suppliers over the  {HEEA ZE R ITREKEEZ -

years.

CORPORATE AND BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT TERERER

We believe the year 2010 represents an important milestone in the  FH{fIBZ - —ET—ZF L AEFEESF K
history of the Group. The listing of the Company on the Main Board —{EE&Z B2 - ARFR -_E—ZTFE+A
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 12 July 2010 +—B&EFEBA L SAAR AT TR ET
is a major milestone for the Group to further establish itself in the  Jy BT E B SAEBE—FETHER
scrap metal recycling industry and is also the foundation on which  EEE£BEAITENMA - IARPIE N EHE
we will launch the next stage of our development. As indicated in T —REMREBHNES - HUOAATNERS
the Company’s prospectus, we plan to use the IPO proceeds to  2p7%; - BFIztE BN A AFHABRERGE 2R
increase purchase of additional raw materials, to further enhance our  TEBRAIEELEINEME - BBEEBLER
procurement network and capabilities through joint ventures and/or skt BE i — SR AR A48 MIZF 82 - 1R
mergers or acquisitions, to expand the processing and production  FIIRABZRFBEMIN T REER SN  WRE
capacity in our existing Ningbo plant as well as looking to establish  fEFRBREMH MRS FHEERE - LARBE

new production plants in other cities in China, and for general —f34&iE&E 4 - P EBEHE S FiistElfT
working capital purposes. We are actively working in line with such =5 o
plan.

We are actively looking at potential merger and acquisition HfIEGRESHEEAFLIEK= - BES
opportunities but have not identified any targets to enter into any  HARZEIBEMEELGERK S - tENIERE
such transactions to date. Insofar as organic growth is concerned, ME @ BEBERIN T IMEMNTELAIR
the negotiations to expand our annual processing capacity for our B £#980,000M8 4% 75 2= 200,000 M8 &9 1 79 3 &
Ningbo processing plant from our present 80,000 tonnes to 200,000 B8 » SR THI A EBR KR FEE o
tonnes are progressing well and the final arrangement is expected to

be finalised in the next few months.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES HEER

On the environmental protection front, we place great emphasis ZIBERAE M= @ RIIEESREERE T
on ensuring that all of our processing facilities are in line with local  FrAE NI TR HEHEFT A Bt BRI IRFE
and national environmental protection standards. As announced by Y o {RIEHDT B IBIB(REEN AL - KNEFH
the Environmental Protection Department of Zhejiang Province (i ESINT R B OFERLER  BFESESEN
TTAIRIBIRERE), we have obtained the highest verification result  EEE#ISTE I T B P RESEZ DS o &
among the designated processing units for imported hardware and &£ E @ AERIETSHEAASKE @ hELE
electrical appliance scrap, electric wire and cable scrap, as well as &gk - REBER A @ ECDRREE IR
motor scrap in Zhejiang Province. Our production processes do  IZ{R#EH i R EEIE « OB EE T FEAN
not consume large volumes of electricity and water and therefore  Z=5g « 7K ~ B2 RIRZ 54 o

produce very small volumes of waste materials. We consider that

we have adopted sufficient environmental protection measures and

controls against air, water, solids and noise pollutions produced

during the course of our production process.
BAERMEBRAFRAR HHEHRE 2010 7



Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EFEHE ()

PROSPECTS

With encouraging signs indicating the world economy is gradually
recovering, and the increasing support from the PRC government
to develop the recycling industry. We believe the metal recycling
industry in the PRC will continue to grow and will become an
important source and an integral part of the metal resource supply
chain of the PRC in the foreseeable future.

We also strongly believe in the importance of building a sustainable
and environmentally responsible business. The metal recycling
industry is in the forefront and plays a vital role in ensuring that
the future production and supply of ferrous and nonferrous metals
are conducted in a sustainable and environmentally responsible
manner. Metal recycling contributes significantly to the protection
of the environment and to the preservation of valuable natural
resources, including the use of energy, which are consumed in large
quantities during primary metal production processes. On the basis
of the above stated fundamental belief, we are moving towards
increasing our procurement and processing volumes substantially
in the coming months to cater for the rapidly increasing demand for
scrap raw materials in the PRC. We strongly believe in our ability to
capitalise on a rapidly growing industry and to achieve good returns
to Shareholders in a sustainable and environmentally responsible
manner.

APPRECIATION

The Board of Directors would like to express its sincere gratitude to
the management of the Group and all the staff for their hard work
and dedication, as well as its shareholders, business associates,
bankers, lawyers, sponsor and auditors for their support to the
Group throughout the period.

Fang Ankong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 August, 2010

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited « Interim Report 2010

A=
ENATASRENTRBTEREBEERS
1BEE - A0 AP B BUT T SR MR TSR A 3%
B’ BPEETEESBELETRSSUE
B YRATRARRK AT EEEERIE
BOEZRRREBD

BARERLAFEERMHRRAEE
MEBEREE  MeEBBLETRLIVER
AIAR - MR AR KA R F B R R HIREA
BEENTEEERMERERACSBTE
DERBEEAL - EBBEHRRFRERRT
PERRER  BRERRESBLEBIET
REEMAWERTEEZENER - EXE
AHERED - BB ARREA KEE N
BRIB NN T8 Mm R i Bl R E R AR
EARE EFHHFER - RIFVRERPIERE

RPN IEREIRREOTTRIA R R R RS
REABENT A RBIRERRIFH@E

=z
=

EEeRUMAREEEENEERETHNE
N REERL - ARBIRGR - FBHMEBAL - R
17 ~ 7260~ REBARZBETN RS A K HE
RS FDRRAE

&% —F-FF\A=t+tA



Management Discussion and Analysis

TH B

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK EBOERESE

During the period, the Group recorded strong growth in revenue and  HEijN) - BEEHFEHESBERN _EENLET
encouraging overall profitability following the strong recovery in scrap - F#E AR EIF+ - ANEBE 15 18 SHHY UGS IS
metal prices in the PRC since the second half of 2009. The Group’s & - ML R AL TS ASE - AEEH
revenue increased from HK$675.6 million in the same period of 2009 Yz B — Z % 1. 45 [& Hi #1675,600,0005% 7T
to HK$2.44 billion, this represents an increase of 2.6 times over the £ %2 440,000,000/ 7T * ®—ZE T N F [
same period of 2009 and at the same time exceeded the 2009 full HfEE26(% @ AR NTBBE -_EZTNEND
year revenue. Flzs o

Set out below is a summary of both gross and net profit or loss with X &% 25t LK R ERGFSBENE

and without write back of the Inventory Provision: FlskERE -
Six months ended 30 June
BEASA=1+RHLAEA
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Revenue Wz 2,444,432 675,569
Cost of sales HERKAK (2,168,186) (426,571)
Gross profit EF 276,246 248,998
Write back of Inventory Provision BEFERE = (304,318)
Gross profit/(loss) (without write back ~ EX|,/(FE18)
of the Inventory Provision) (Rt RBOFERE) 276,246 (55,320)
Gross profit margin EF=E 11.3% 36.9%
Gross profit/(loss) margin (without EFE (FEEXK)
write back of the Inventory Provision) — (GREF REEIFEEE) 11.3% (8.2%)
Net profit g al)e ik 156,889 212,509
Net profit/(loss) (without write back w A, (E518) 58
of the Inventory Provision) (Rt RBEFERE) 156,889 (16,337)

BaXtEBEARAR HHHRE 2010 9



Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWRS ()

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)

Since the sharp collapse in world metal prices during the fourth
quarter of 2008, the market prices of our Recycled Metal Products
have remained at a lower level in the first half of 2009 resulting in
overall gross loss of HK$55.3 million (without write back of the
Inventory Provision). With the strong recovery in world metal prices
since the second half of 2009, the Group achieved a strong overall
gross profit of HK$276.2 million in the first half of 2010. Hence, net
profit of HK$156.9 million was recorded in the period.

With the volatility of world metal prices gradually easing but not
quite reaching the pre financial crisis levels, the Group managed
to increase its purchase volumes to cater for its processing needs
through its well established overseas procurement network since the
second half of 2009. During the period, the Group sold over 230,000
tonnes of its processed products within its three business segments
combined. This represents an increase of 132.3% when compared
with just over 99,000 tonnes in the same period of 2009.

Despite the fact that certain major metal prices including copper
scrap and steel scrap have recovered strongly in the first half of 2009
but still not quite reaching the pre financial crisis levels. Although
easing gradually, price volatility remained high especially in May and
June this year, the Group still managed to achieve an overall gross
profit margin of 11.3%. This was mainly due to the Group’s ability
to maximize the value realizable from processing its raw materials.
During the period, the Group had continued to follow its usual
practices of consistently buying mixed metals scrap and selling its
recycled products in accordance with its processing ability so as
to mitigate the short-term impact of price volatility on the overall
performance of the Group.

On 12 July 2010, the Company was successfully listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, this major
milestone signals the beginning of the Group to position itself in
the next stage of its development. Net capital of approximately
HK$581.5 million was raised, of which approximately HK$290.8
million will be used to increase purchase of additional raw materials,
approximately HK$189.0 million will be used for expanding our
procurement network and increase our existing and new processing
capacity, and HK$50.0 million was used to repay shareholders’ loans
soon after the listing.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited « Interim Report 2010
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWRS ()

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Following the Company’s listing on 12 July 2010, management is
actively working on exploring opportunities in line with the directions
as indicated in our listing prospectus.

As for our Ningbo processing plant, the negotiations to expand
our annual processing capacity from our present 80,000 tonnes
to 200,000 tonnes are progressing well and final arrangement is
expected to be finalised in the next few months.

With signs indicating the world economy is recovering slowly, and
the increasing support from the PRC government to develop the
recycling industry, the Group believes the metal recycling industry in
the PRC will continue to grow and will become an important source
of metal resources in the future.

The management also believes that the metal recycling industry plays
a vital role in the production and the supply of ferrous and nonferrous
metals. It contributes significantly to the protection of the environment
and to the preservation of valuable natural resources, including
energy, which are consumed in large quantities during primary metal
production processes. With this in mind and in accordance with
our expansion strategy, the Group is aiming to procure 45,000 to
50,000 tonnes of Mixed Metal Scrap materials a month to cater for
its processing needs. Such purchase volume is expected to increase
as the Group continues to expand. The management will continue
making efforts to capitalize on such direction in achieving satisfactory
returns to the Shareholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENRED (&)
FINANCIAL REVIEW BF %% B B8
Key Financial Ratios A TR b R
The following table sets forth certain of our financial ratios as of the ~ T~EREHZI|AREIRE B RN A T A T
date for the periods indicated: R
At
31 December
2009
RZZETNF
Liquidity Ratios RENESHE +=-—A=+—H
Current ratio B 141
Quick ratio REpLL R 0.43
Gearing ratio (%) BEEENR%) 43.2
Six months ended 30 June
BZEAB=1+HIEXEA
2009
—ETNEF
(Unaudited)
(REeEZ)
Inventory turnover days GFERAZEHEEH 329
Debtor’s turnover days FEUR BR A8 B 2k 11
Creditor’s turnover days FEA BR AEE 0 2k 22
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWRS ()

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources and Capital Structure
Included in net current assets were cash and various bank deposits
totalling HK$443.2 million (31 December 2009: HK$316.4 million).
Total bank borrowings were HK$1.18 billion (31 December 2009:
HK$799.0 million), and these were mainly used to finance the
purchases of mixed metal scrap from overseas. Such borrowings are
mainly denominated in United States dollars and Renminbi.

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 30 June 2010 was 46.3% (31
December 2009: 43.2%). This was mainly due to increase in bank
borrowings during the period.

With regard to debtor’s turnover days and creditor’s turnover days,
they were both reduced from 11 days and 22 days (30 June 2009)
1o 4 days and 8 days in this period respectively.

Inventory turnover days had also been reduced from 329 days (30
June 2009) to 120 days in this period. With the target of 90 days, the
management is working to reduce the inventory turnover days further
S0 as to meet such target.

Following the listing on 12 July 2010, the Group’s liquidity position
became stronger and this will prepare the Group to expand in
accordance with its business directions.

Capital Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

As at 30 June 2010, the Group had pledged certain buildings, land
use rights and bank deposits with an aggregate carrying value of
approximately HK$351.8 million (31 December 2009: approximately
HK$328.6 million) to secure bank borrowings.

As at 30 June 2010, the Group had capital commitments in respect
of acquisition of property, plant and equipment but not provided for
in the consolidated financial statements amounted to HK$2.4 million
(30 June 2009: HK$4.8 million).

As at the date of this report, the Board is not aware of any material
contingent liabilities.

B 7 e (4E)

mEE e M BERKEARNERF
BRERRBEEFERNARE MEEIRTT
TF 51 3£443,200,0008 0 ( —EZENF+— A
=+—H : 316,400,000/ 7T) ° RITIEEH
%4/51,180,000,0008 T (=T NF+ A
=+—H : 799,000,000/87T) *+ TEARAE
MEINRERAECBIREES - %S EE
FEUFETRARBEE -

AEBR -_E—ZSFAZTHNABBEE
b EAB46.3%(ZEFNF+_A=1+—H:
43.2%) » EERREINIRITIEEE N -

REKRAEAS L ENERRAESEASMmS -
ZMIEAESEH#ESRHRI11A 2B (Z2E
NERNAZTHRIRSEHAN4IE &8H -

FEAERHIMHPIB (ZETAFRHA
=tHIRELEAHAN1208 - ARBFRES
90RH - EEELBZNE—FRIFERAEH
BUAZRZBER -

RZT—ZTHFLA+T-ALmE  AEEHW
RBESHRNEBIRE - B AREEIRE
HERBG T RETT R o

BARFENSANEE
RZZE—ZEXA=1+0  KNEEKME
T 42 {8 #9351,800,000 sty & T F -
T FEARERRTER(ZETEAF A
=+—H8 : #9328,600,000/7T) * A AIRTT
BEVEER -

R-Z—TFA=Z+H  AEEARBWE
PE - B MR IBET ER G MR
IRHYE A EHE 52,400,000/8 T( —ZEZNE
NAZ=+H :4,800,00087T) °

BEARERY  gLEFSMA - BEEMA
BEASEAAILE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWRS ()

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group in its ordinary course of business is exposed to market
risk such as commodities price risk, foreign currencies risk, interest
rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s risk management
strategy aims to minimize the adverse effects of these risks on its
financial performance.

With the establishment of the Pricing Committee, a new formal
hedging policy took effect on 23 June 2010 which aimed to enhance
the Group’s risk management of commodity price fluctuations.

As part of its foreign currency hedging strategy, the Group bought
US dollars forward contracts since the second half of 2009 primarily
to mitigate our exposure to fluctuation of the exchange rate between
US dollars and Renminbi whilst taking advantage of the favourable
forward contract exchange rates. The Group will continue to adhere
to this hedging strategy so long as the forward contracts rate justifies
it.

With the current interest rates staying at relatively low levels, the
Group has not entered into any interest rate hedging contracts or any
other interest rate related derivative financial instrument. However,
the Group continues to monitor its related interest rate exposure
closely and will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
when the need arises.

As for credit risk, the Group continues to follow the trade practices
of cash on collection from sales of all of its Metal Recycling Products
in order to minimize the carrying amounts of the financial assets in
the Group’s financial statements. In addition, the Group will continue
to monitor closely the trade debtors for the Foundry business to
minimize potential impairment losses.

With the liquidity risk, the Group will continue maintaining a balance
between continuity of funding and the flexibility through the use of
bank borrowings. With the successful listing on 12 July 2010, the
liquidity position would be enhanced and the Group will be in a better
position to carry out its development plan at a pace relatively quicker
than before.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWRS ()

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As from 12 July 2010, all related party transactions that existed in
2009 and before were discontinued. Pursuant to the Capitalisation
Issue as indicated in the listing prospectus, the Group had
subsequent to 30 June 2010 capitalised HK$223.7 million of the
amounts due to related parties. Aside from the sum of HK$50.0
million paid out of the proceeds of the listing to settle such amounts
due to related parties, the Group has settled all remaining amounts
due to related parties before or upon listing.

INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERINGS (“IPO”)

On 12 July 2010, the Company was successfully listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Total net
proceeds received by the Company from the IPO after deducting all
related expenses was approximately HK$581.5 million.

EMPLOYEES

As at 30 June 2010, the Group had a workforce of 274 employees.
In addition, the Group engaged approximately 3,400 separation
and selection workers through local contractors. The Group has
not experienced any strikes, work stoppages or significant labor
disputes which have affected its operations in the past and it has
not experienced any significant difficulties in recruiting and retaining
qualified staff. The Group continues to maintain good relationships
with its employees.

As indicated in the listing prospectus the Company granted Pre-IPO
share options to acquire Shares in the Company to 36 employees
and directors of the Group. No share options have been granted
under the Post-IPO share option scheme since its adoption.

BEAIRS

RZE—ZFEA+ZB FIBEZZEZTAN
FRUABMBESRZEERIE - IRIEE
MEBRATRHERLET  —ZF—FFN
AZ+tR#% AE@EDBEMNEERRE
223,700,000/ 8 TLHEEFEE AN © BrA LT FATIS
FRIE50,000,000/8 LB E X S RN EE T K
BHN - ANEEE R LRI E M EEEN
BB AR T8 -

BXALHBEE(EXRAHERE]D
R-B—T4tA+=H  FAAREEBH
ARSMBRARERRY LT - MBAE
HARXE - ARREERARBEMER
TR HRRAARR XY /3581,500,000/8 7T °

=]

R-E—ZTFA=1+H AEEH£EF274
HIEE - W AEBBEBREWSBRBEA
AMER #3400 F M FER T A - REE
BEAWESRET M EEENETL - F13
BERYGEMNG  THRERKEEEREER
AMEBREANE - ~AEEHEES —E#
FRITHEIRER -

WMEMEBRMTR  AAFR36HEE A
SEEEREER AR EIBRENARE
Bein - B BRAFRBERBIRERT S ERN
% - BUERUCR D RERGE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWRS ()

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group considers that investor relations are important to a listed
company. Maintaining good relationships with investors and keeping
them up-to-date on latest corporate communications and business
development in a timely fashion would enhance transparency and
strengthen corporate governance of the Group. With the support of
the Board of Directors, Mr. Gu Liyong, an Executive Director of the
Company, has been assigned to take responsibility for all matters
relating to investor relations of the Company and the Group.

Going forward, we will make special effort to keep our investors
abreast of the corporate and business development, and to
introduce the Group’s strengths and strategies in order to gain
support and recognition from them and also the market in general.
During the period, an investor relations column was created to
allow real-time exchange of information with our investors and other
interested parties.
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Disclosure of Interests

R

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS EZEERFETHRAERETATEREHE
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING #EZEHNRKR®G - HEARORES
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY MR RXA

AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 30 June 2010, the Company had not received any notice of WR-Z—ZF,XA=1+H ARAKRQEHK
interests to be recorded under section 352 of the Securities and REEBHAXTSHAER AR ([ £
Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”) as the Company had not been listed on 71+ FH AN A & SN BB IECE A K HE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). EHIY([ 5 R HEE &) |) £ 352 Pt Hy F
Al iz @A ©
As at 30 August 2010, the directors and chief executives of the R-ZE—ZFFNA=+H KAATEZ=KF

Company and their associates had the following interests in the E{THA B REERBE ANKAT REM
shares and underlying shares of the Company and its associated B %EE (F & BAEH R EIE &G YEXVER D)
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were  #Ji& {0 BB D BIARIECE S R EAE (&5])
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange  EXVEIMNE7 R8I (BIERIBE(EASLEAE
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including &I YEXVEEH E’jggiﬁbkfﬁljﬁ“ﬂz—mﬁﬁ,%ﬁ
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have &KX &)siiBE A 75%5@ THEER
under such provisions of the SFO) or pursuant to the Model Code  AtZX#ESFHI|ZBERE AN SRS i,,jﬁ
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, or were 57 % & B & 157 >>3521|7,<A}7{§5/\$Q Gl
required to be entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant B & Hy#EzS -

to Section 352 of the SFO:

Number of
underlying
shares
(in respect of Approximate
share options)  percentage of

Number of (Note 1) total number of
issued shares #HEARR  shareholding
Name of director Capacity 2817 (GEBRE) GH2IREN
EEnA g4 RHEE B (FaE1) BRBED T
Mr. Fang Ankong Interest in controlled corporation 405,000,000 - 40.50%
F R (Note 2)
R EFDER 2w (i EE2)
Beneficial owner (Note 3) - 3,500,000 0.35%
EaEa AE3)
Mr. Stephanus Maria van Interest in controlled corporation 405,000,000 - 40.50%
QOoaijen (Note 4)
Stephanus Maria van R HER 2 s (HT7E4)
Ooijent &
Beneficial owner (Note 5) - 1,000,000 0.10%
BatEB APIEES)
Mr. Gu Liyong Beneficial owner (Note 6) - 425,000 0.043%
BB L E BaEB A(MIEE6)
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Disclosure of Interests (continued)

B E ()

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (continued)

Notes:

1. The share options were granted, under the pre-IPO share option scheme
of the Company, with effect from 23 June 2010.

2. 345,000,000 shares are directly held by HWH Holdings Limited (“‘HWH”)
which is wholly owned by Mr. Fang Ankong (“Mr. Fang”). Green Elite
Limited (“Green Elite”) holds 60,000,000 shares in the Company and is
equally owned by HWH and Delco Participation B.V. (“Delco”). Therefore,
Mr. Fang is deemed to be interested in the 405,000,000 shares of the
Company.

3. Mr. Fang was granted option under the pre-IPO share option scheme to
subscribe for 3,500,000 shares of the Company.

4. 345,000,000 shares are directly held by Delco. Green Elite holds
60,000,000 shares in the Company and is equally owned by HWH and
Delco. Delco is equally owned by SVO Company B.V. (“SVO”) (which is
wholly-owned by Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen (“Mr. van Qoijen”)) and
H.P.L. Metals B.V. (“HPL”) (which is wholly-owned by Stichting Beheer
Aandelen HPL Metals), a foundation for the sole benefit of Mr. Herman
Maurits de Leeuw. Therefore, Mr. van Ooijen is deemed to have interest
of 405,000,000 shares in the Company.

5. Mr. van Ooijen was granted option under the pre-IPO share option
scheme to subscribe for 1,000,000 shares of the Company.

6. Mr. Gu Liyong was granted option under the pre-IPO share option
scheme to subscribe for 425,000 shares of the Company.

Saved as disclosed above, none of the directors and chief executives
of the Company or any of their associates had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation as at 30 August 2010.
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2. 345,000,000 AL ZE=EE([HEENEE
A 2 HWH Holdings Limited ([ HWH | ) & #
#5748 © Green Elite Limited ([ Green Elite ) 5
A 782 7]60,000,000 §% f% {5 - i1 Green Elite
F HWH & Delco Participation B.V. ([ Delco ] )
L c At AR ER B ABHEE AR A
405,000,0000% % 15 2 #Ez ©

3. FEREBIEE RN MBI B ER
T EB IR RERR B AR X 7)3,500,0000% A 17 ©

4. 345,000,000#%FfDelcoE##5H ° Green Elite
#5542 5)60,000,000/% A% 1% + fGreen Elite
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%2 & WA 2 SVO Company B.V.([SVO ]) &
Stichting Beheer Aandelen HPL MetalsZ & #
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Maurits de Leeuwt £ BEHBENES ) T
%A o Alttvan Ooijenst &R A A A A A
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FTEIEE T B IR RS 2K 2 |]1,000,000% A%

,T/\ o
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Disclosure of Interests (continued)

K E ()

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a pre-IPO share option scheme (the
“pre-IPO share option scheme”) on 23 June 2010 under which the
Company has conditionally granted options to certain directors,
senior management and employees of the Group to purchase shares
of the Company with an exercise price equal to the offer price as

defined in the Prospectus.

As at 30 August 2010, details of the share option granted under the

pre-IPO share option scheme are as follows:

BT S

EZERR

ARREHEAR —_F—FTFA-+=A#

PRI AR AT &) - %ETEIR

RBRETAZRBEE RIFER L ATRE
BOOBERETAEENETES  SR/1T
BABRETEE -

R-ZZ-ZTF/\A=1H REBXLHA

P AN BB AR AT BIFTIR th VBB AR AR 1B A0 T

Exercise
price Exercisable period
per share (dd/mm/yyyy) Number of Approximate
Date of Grant (HKS$)  (Note 1) underlying percentage of
(dd/mm/yyyy) R 1T6EH shares shareholding
Grantees A TEE (AR %F) AR 12 BAOER
ERA (B/R/%) (Br)  (FsEt) B Batt
(i) Directors
BF
Mr. Fang Ankong  23/06/2010 2.43 12/07/2011 - 12/07/2012 1,050,000 0.10500%
ARERE —E-FF —E——FtATZHZE
ANAZ+=AR —E-——H+A+=H
13/07/2012 - 12/07/2013 1,050,000 0.10500%
—ET——-F+H+=H=ZE
—E=HtA+=H
13/07/2013 - 12/07/2014 1,400,000 0.14000%
ZE—=F+tA+=HZE
—E-mELA+ZH
3,500,000 0.35000%
Mr. Gu Liyong 23/06/2010 2.43 12/07/2011 -12/07/2012 127,500 0.01275%
BEFEELE —=—ZF —E——F+tA+=HZE
NAZ+=R —E-——F+A+=H
13/07/2012 — 12/07/2013 127,500 0.01275%
—E-——F+tAT=HZE
—E—=F+A+=H
13/07/2013 — 12/07/2014 170,000 0.01700%
—E-=ZF+tAT=HZE
—E-NFE+A+=H
425,000 0.04250%
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Disclosure of Interests (continued)

EHERE(R)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BARRESTEI(E)
Exercise
price  Exercisable period
per share (dd/mm/yyyy) Number of Approximate
Date of Grant (HK$)  (Note 1) underlying percentage of
(dd/mm/yyyy) s8R TEH shares shareholding
Grantees B RS 758 (B A %) LRy BMOER
3N (BB %) GBm)  (MeE1) =] Botk
Mr. Stephanus 23/06/2010 2.43 12/07/2011 - 12/07/2012 300,000 0.03000%
Maria van —ZE-FF —E——FtA+=ZRHZE
Ooijen NAZT=H —E——-F+A+=H
Stephanus 13/07/2012 — 12/07/2013 300,000 0.03000%
Maria van TE—ZFA+=HFE
Ooijenst 4 —EZ—=%+A+=H
13/07/2013 - 12/07/2014 400,000 0.04000%
ZE—=FtA+=HZE
—E-OFE+LA+=H
1,000,000 0.1000%
4,925,000 0.49250%
(i) Employees 23/06/2010 2.43 12/07/2011 -12/07/2012 2,164,500 0.21645%
== —E-TF —T——%+A+=HZE
NAZt+=H —E——F+A+=H
13/07/2012 — 12/07/2013 2,164,500 0.21645%
ZE——FtA+=HZE
—E—=F+tA+=H
13/07/2013 — 12/07/2014 2,886,000 0.28860%
—E—=FtA+=HF
—ZE-WFE+A+ZH
7,215,000 0.72150%
Total 12,140,000 1.21400%
A

=a
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Disclosure of Interests (continued)

EHERE(R)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Notes:

(1) Each of the grantees to whom options have been conditionally granted
under the pre-IPO share option scheme will be entitled to exercise:

(i) up to 30% of the total number of options granted at any time during
the period commencing from the date of the first anniversary of the
Listing Date to the date of the second anniversary of the Listing Date
(both days inclusive);

(i) up to 30% of the total number of options granted at any time during
the period commencing from the date immediately following the date
of the second anniversary of the Listing Date to the date of the third
anniversary of the Listing Date (both days inclusive); and

(i) up to 40% of the total number of options granted, at any time during
the period commencing from the date immediately following the date
of the third anniversary of the Listing Date to the date of the fourth
anniversary of the Listing Date (both days inclusive).

Saved as disclosed as above, no options were granted, cancelled
or lapsed as at 30 August, 2010. The consideration paid by each
grantee for each grant of option is HK$1.00.

BRET (&)
BE -

() REER DR BRA B BER BES A (R
BT BERENEARA - A

() BELMAMERARBRER BAFZ
HREFBEFEHIL(BEERMAE
M) - BERFTT(E T R A i R B AR R A {0
THEIE30%

(i) B LmAMEREHBEERE —RFZ
PREE=BEFERIL(BEEEMKRE
W) - BER TR AR AR B AR R AR 1D
TEBE30% ¢ K

(i) B_LEmAMERERBRRBRE=ZRAFZ
HEEFMEFERIH(BEERERNAE
M) - BERRTT(E P R AR A SR B AR B AR 10
TBiB40% -

B EXFAEEESI  R_T—TF\A=1

B EBAER - R © BARA
R ENB RN AT R(ER1.008 T °
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Disclosure of Interests (continued)

B E ()

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 30 June 2010, the Company had not received any notice
of interests to be recorded under section 336 of the SFO as the
Company had not been listed on the Stock Exchange as at that
date.

As at 30 August, 2010, other than the Directors and the chief
executives of the Company in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO, the following persons had interests or short
positions in the shares of underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO or otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange:

FERRREAQXAREEB LB
R4 HERORESHER KR
B

R-ZF—ZFFRNA=1TH - ARARAELR
R P BT > B AR R I B BRI
(BH KB 5B 5 336 6Pt ) (E (T e 2
AN o

R-ZF-ZFNA=1TH BREESZR
HIR RG] FIB6IRAFEME LM A
BHARBEEMESTHRA SRR kA
BB SN - AT AR B B0 AERA AR
D A RIBCRE 77 R B 155 EXVELSE2
KIFAARA R B EXAE R LG F
BI)FEIB6IFMFERECMALCE - HEH
BARARBRBBYIAZERIORR -

Approximate

No. of shares of percentage of

the Company held shareholding
Name Capacity ST N BAOER
£ 54 RHEE Botk
HWH Holdings Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner, interest in 405,000,000 (L) 40.50%
(BfF&E1) controlled corporation
Bl A REESEE 2 xR
Delco Participation B.V. (Note 2) Beneficial owner, interest in 405,000,000 (L) 40.50%
(MF7¥2) controlled corporation
BERBEA A RIERERE 2
Herman Maurits de Leeuw (Note 2) Interest in controlled corporation 405,000,000 (L) 40.50%
(MizE2) REEHER 2
H.P.L. Metals B.V. (Note 2) Interest in controlled corporation 405,000,000 (L) 40.50%
(Pff7E2) REZENERE 2 e
Stichting Beheer Aandelen H.P.L. Interest in controlled corporation 405,000,000 (L) 40.50%
Metals (Note 2) REZEHEE 2
(BH7F2)
SVO Company B.V. (Note 2) Interest in controlled corporation 405,000,000 (L) 40.50%

(F3E2) REPEHEE 2 e
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Disclosure of Interests (continued)

EHERE(R)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND FERFEANAATIREHEKEEIEY
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING % - HERORESWERSR X
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY 2&(#&)

AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (continued)

Approximate

No. of shares of percentage of
the Company held shareholding
Name Capacity ES NG BARER
£ 545 RHEE Botk
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. Interest in controlled corporation 73,872,000 (L) 7.39%
(Note 3) REEHER 2 s
RIVESREBRBER R (HFES)
China Construction Bank Interest in controlled corporation 73,872,000 (L) 7.39%
Corporation (Note 3) RZIEGEE 2 s
P EIRRIRITARID AR A R (H97E3)
CCB International Group Holdings  Interest in controlled corporation 73,872,000 (L) 7.39%
Limited (Note 3) REEENERE 2 s
EIRBIR S EIER AR A B (FIEE3)
CCB Financial Holdings Limited Interest in controlled corporation 73,872,000 (L) 7.39%
(Note 3) REEHER 2
IR TR AR A B (PHEE3)
CCB International (Holdings) Beneficial owner 73,872,000 (L) 7.39%
Limited (Note 3) EmlEEA
R BIRR (AR BRR A R (M15E3)
CCB International Assets Interest in controlled corporation 73,872,000 (L) 7.39%
Management (Cayman) Limited A #EHAE 2 i
(Note 3)
(MH3E3)
CCB International Asset Investment manager 73,872,000 (L) 7.39%
Management Limited (Note 3) AEegiE
RIREIFR EEE R AR A A (HFE3)
Green Elite Limited (Note 4) Beneficial owner 60,000,000 (L) 6.00%
(PtE4) BEmBEAA
The Letter “L” denotes a long position. [LIZFRREARDRZITE -
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Disclosure of Interests (continued)

B E ()

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (continued)

Notes:

1. 345,000,000 shares are directly held by HWH Holdings Limited (“HWH?”)
which is wholly owned by Mr. Fang Ankong (“Mr. Fang”). Green Elite
holds 60,000,000 shares in the Company and is equally owned by HWH
and Delco Participation B.V. (“Delco”). Therefore, Mr. Fang is deemed to
have interest in the 405,000,000 shares of the Company.

2. 345,000,000 shares are directly held by Delco. Green Elite holds
60,000,000 shares in the Company and is equally owned by HWH and
Delco. Delco is equally owned by SVO Company B.V. (“SVO”) (which is
wholly-owned by Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen (“Mr. van Qoijen”)) and
H.P.L. Metals B.V. (“HPL”) (which is wholly-owned by Stichting Beheer
Aandelen HPL Metals), a foundation for the sole benefit of Mr. Herman
Maurits de Leeuw. Therefore, Mr. van Ooijen is deemed to have interest
of 405,000,000 shares in the Company.

3. According to the information disclosed in the disclosure of interest form,
CCB International Asset Management Limited is ultimately indirectly
owned as to 57.09% by Central Huijin Investment Limited through five
intermediary companies, namely, CCB International Assets Management
(Cayman) Limited, CCB International (Holdings) Limited, CCB Financial
Holdings Limited, CCB International Group Holdings Limited, China
Construction Bank Corporation, and therefore Central Huijin Investment
Limited and five intermediary companies are deemed to have interest in
the 73,872,000 shares held by CCB International Assets Management
Limited.

4. 60,000,000 shares are directly held by Green Elite and Green Elite is
equally owned by HWH and Delco.

Save as disclosed above, the directors and chief executives of the
Company are not aware that there is any party who, as at 30 August
2010, had an interest or short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

ERELREMEH

DIRECTORS’ COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL
CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”). Specific enquiries have
been made to all directors, who have confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Throughout the period, the Company had complied with all
applicable provisions under the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules save as
disclosed below.

Code Provision A.2.1 requires the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer to be separated. Mr. Fang Ankong is the chairman
and chief executive officer of the Company. The Board considered
that the current structure facilitates the efficiency of execution of the
Group’s business strategies and maximum the effectiveness of its
operation.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The members of the audit committee comprise Dr. Loke Yu, Ms.
Zhang Jingdong and Mr. Li Xikui. The committee has reviewed with
the management the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group, internal control and financial reporting matters including a
review of the audited consolidated interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2010 prior to recommending them to the Board for
approval.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company has been set up in
accordance with Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The committee
comprises Mr. Fang Ankong, Dr. Loke Yu, Ms. Zhang Jingdong, Mr.
Li Xikui and Mr. Stephanus Maria van Qoijen.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company has been set up in
accordance with Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The committee
comprises Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooaijen, Dr. Loke Yu, Ms. Zhang
Jingdong, Mr. Li Xikui and Mr. Fang Ankong.

ESHTEETH

RAT R FAREZ ERARR (T ETR
Al DHE10M EMBETAESETESFR S
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EHARSEH  RECHERETRETRZ
M °
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BB ETIAR - RAR—EEST
ETRAIMEI4NDEE AT RER - H
PAT Bl ST RIS

RIRFRIGRA2.1 - T RITHAR 2 B
BANR  UTREAR—ARE - TRESL
ARAREIEEEIRERADTERTAL
2 -EXRAS BB REARER
TR 2 BIE - WHBERS AT °
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ERZEeNEREEEMNEL BEHRK
ITRFHERLE - ZERECHEEECDEMN
REBFAERME SRR RER - I BT
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=TBIEXNEANEREZEETHEE -

yFMEES
RRAEARE L3RRI 81438 E A 7 7
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Corporate Governance and Other Information (continued)

EEERRAMER(E)

PRICING COMMITTEE

The Pricing Committee of the Company has been set up on 23
June 2010 to review and determine the offer and selling prices of
the Group’s physical stock as well as the Group’s hedging positions
requirements on a daily basis; to enhance the risk management
of commodity price fluctuations and to ensure an effective risk
monitoring system. The committee comprises Mr. Fang Ankong, Mr.
Xu Jialiang, Mr. Zhu Zhonghui, Mr. Gan Jun, Ms. Chan Tung Tung
and Mr. Chow Wan Hoi Paul.

MONITORING COMMITTEE

The monitoring committee of the Company has been set up on 23
June 2010 to closely monitor the use of the net proceeds of the
Global Offering; to ensure the funds are applied over the timeline
specified and to ensure that the purchase of raw materials is for
production usage and not for speculative purposes. The committee
comprises Mr. Fang Ankong, Mr. Gu Liyong, Ms. Chan Tung Tung
and Mr. Chow Wan Hoi Paul.

INTERIM DIVIDEND

The directors do not recommend the payment of an interim dividend
for the six months ended 30 June 2010. Accordingly, no closure of
Register of Members of the Company is proposed.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 12 July 2010 and therefore,
during the six months ended 30 June 2010, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited « Interim Report 2010

EF%EQ

AR ERZZE—FF A+ =8BKZ
TEBZEg- E\E%F)ﬁ&?zmaﬁﬁlta
ZHEEEARELE ULBREAHEEZ
Z} - UREYHESBEBMRERESRARKRE
B2HA - KEBEALERE  FMRE
HORBEBEYE  HESA  BREEREIR
EEERE -

EEEAE
ARBABER-_F-TFRNA-+=ZHKIE
BZEg AEABRTERENRBEMEA

FEMR BRZSAEAREERHEARE
A - TREER RIERB R B A EEE Z ER
MIFRBES - REBEALZ=LE BF

BiE MUK LKL RARGEE -
TS
ERYTERERBRE—S—SF A=

B ENEA RS - Ilit AR
FAUERERREMER -

BE - HEFEEAXRQF LHES

ARFRBHA-T—TH LA+ AEES
BAAFARATES L EitAE =

—FEAASTAILAEA - ARFRE
W%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ\ﬁ%ﬁ%E$ﬁﬁtﬁ
B%



INDEPENDENT JOINT AUDITORS’ REPORT

1L Bk T R BEM IR 5

Deloitte.
=3

TO THE DIRECTORS OF CHIHO-TIANDE GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chiho-
Tiande Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 29 to 95,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 30 June 2010, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the six-month period then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT JOINT AUDITORS’ REPORT (continued)
BYBEREERE (R)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and the
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 30 June 2010 and
of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the six-month period then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the fact that
the corresponding figures set out in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity, consolidated statement of cash flows and the related notes
for the six months ended 30 June 2009 have not been audited.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
27 August 2010

Morison Heng
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
27 August 2010
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FEZEBER

For the six months ended 30 June 2010 &2 —Z—Z 4 ;X A=+ B L/~ EA

Six months ended 30 June
BZEAA=1THLEAEA

2009
ZETNF
NOTES HK$’000
FiEE AT
(Unaudited)
(RigcEZ)
Revenue Wz 7 675,569
Cost of sales SHEMKA 8 (426,571)
Gross profit EH 248,998
Other income HAaUgA 9 3,664
Other gains and losses W K EHE 10 71,608
Distribution costs A A (407)
Administrative expenses TR (12,4906)
Other expenses Hbfx (1,2595)
Finance costs B TERRAR 11 (17,463)
Profit before tax R F5 BT ) 12 292,649
Income tax expense SR~ 14 (80,140)
Profit for the period HRE T 212,509
Other comprehensive income Hib2mEmksE
Exchange difference arising on BENERELEEER
translation to presentation currency &} Z=%8 2,625
Total comprehensive income for HAEER AR
the period 215,134
HK$
BT
Earnings per share AR ZEF
- basic — 2K 16 0.28
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
maMBRRE

At 30 June 2010 RZE—FFNA=+H

At At
30 June 31 December
2010 2009

R=2-2% N-TINF
AA=tA +=A=t-H

NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
MIEE FHExT FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREEE
Property, plant and equipment MEE - HEER KRG 17 139,946 135,284
Prepaid lease payments FEEe 18 35,817 35,962
Deposits paid for acquisition of B2 - HEER KR
property, plant and equipment FiftES 2,158 4,150
177,921 175,396
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 19 1,680,355 1,167,437
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E At e GRIA 20 238,214 188,826
Bills receivables R EZ 21 4,862 1,365
Prepaid lease payments e 18 865 858
Amounts due from related parties FE N B8 5 78 22 488 371
Derivative financial instruments PTHESRTE 23 - 1,072
Pledged bank deposits BRI TR 24 266,236 241,440
Restricted bank deposits SR &ISEITIEZ 24 9,524 5,535
Bank balances and cash IRTTHEHR MRS 24 167,401 69,428
2,367,945 1,676,332
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAE IR 25 210,368 136,605
Bills payables EREE 26 130,481 114,126
Amounts due to related parties FEfTREE 38 22 376,006 93,205
Derivative financial instruments PTHESRTE 23 2,731 1,603
Tax payable FERTTEIR 37,795 44,119
Bank borrowings BITEE 27 1,179,071 799,046
1,936,452 1,188,704
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 431,493 487,628
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT  #EERREBAR
LIABILITIES 609,414 663,024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

RE MR & ()
At30 June 2010 K= E—FEFXA=1H

At

31 December
2009
RZETNF
+—-—A=1+—H
HK$’000
FHT

NOTES
Bt

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Share premium and reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred tax liabilities
Amounts due to related parties

The consolidated financial statements on pages 29 to 95 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27

BEXRRf#E
LN
Bt s (8 M 1

EEEE

FRBEE
ERERIARE
FEfS BRE T 3R

August 2010 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Fang Ankong
DIRECTOR

Mr. Gu Liyong

DIRECTOR

29

418,098

418,098

28
22

21,218
223,708

244,926

663,024

HNFE2EEBENGEUBEHRER S
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E&REEBRAR HEHRE 2010



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ko RS

For the six months ended 30 June 2010 &2 —Z—Z 4 ;X A=+ H L/~ EA

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ADRERGEAER
Foreign
Statutory  Enterprise  currency Accumulated
Share Share Capital general expansion translation (losses)
capital  premium reserve reserve fund reserve profits Total

EE ¥ e R5HER)
kx  BRORE BEARE -RREE RRES  ERRE bl by
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET  TET  TET  TEx  TER TR TERT  TER

At 1 January 2009 “EENE-A-A - - 6552 14414 14414 39139 (79556  (5,087)
Profit for the year FEET - - - - - - 410654 419,654
Exchange difference arising on BERKEREEELN

translation to presentation currency [ i Z58 - - - - - 3,481 - 3,481

Total comprehensive income for ~ FE 2 AU EE

the year - - - - - 3,481 419,654 423,135
Transfer of reserves FREER - - - 17,722 17,722 - (35444) -
At 31 December 2009 —ZENFE+-A=1-H - - 6,552 32,136 32,136 42,620 304,654 418,098
Profit for the period BT - - - - - - 156,889 156,889
Exchange difference arising on BEREREBELH

translation to presentation currency (&3 E% - - - - - 5,654 - 5,654

Total comprehensive income for

the period BRzAkEEE - - - - - 5654 156,880 162,543
Transfer of reserves FEEESR - - - 16,828 16,828 - (33,656) -
At 30 June 2010 “Z-ZFEA=1H - - 6,552 48,964 48,964 48274 427,887 580,641
At1 January 2009 —ZENE-R-H - - 6,552 14,414 14,414 39,139 (79,556) (5,037)
Profit for the period (unaudited) HREF (REER) - - - - - - 212509 212,509
Exchange difference arising on BERERELELN

translation to presentation EHER(REER)

currency (unaudited) - - - - - 2,625 - 2,625

Total comprehensive income for HREENEEE

the period (unaudited) (REER) - - - - - 2625 212509 215,134
Transfer of reserves (unaudited) FEEER (REER) - - - 21,920 21,920 - (43,840) -
At 30 June 2009 (unaudited) ZEENEAA=TAH

(REEZ) - - 6552 36334 36334 41764 89,113 210,007
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)
GEEREEHR(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 HiE — T —FF X A=+H1XEA

Statutory general reserve and enterprise expansion fund represent
the appropriation of 10% of profit after tax determined based on the
relevant accounting rules and regulations of the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) as required by the Articles of Association of
the Company’s PRC subsidiaries. The appropriation may cease to
apply if the balance of the statutory general reserve and enterprise
expansion fund has reached 50% of the PRC subsidiaries’ registered
capital.

The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal value of the aggregate share capital and share premium
of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company upon the Group
Reorganisation and the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange.

AARFEMNBARNEMERZAREE -
ARBRETEARLMB((HE]) SR
Rl B R AR TE B R 28 A1 0% BEAETE —
BEBREFRERES - AT —REGBR
CEERESHPETEMBLAREMER
H150% -+ AIIRTAL LE AR A -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RaReRER

For the six months ended 30 June 2010 HE —Z—Z4 XA=+HIN@AA

Six months ended 30 June
BZEXA=1+HIAAEA

2010 2009
—E-=F ZETNF
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
FaE FET FAT
(Unaudited)
(RigEZ)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETEH
Profit before tax B H5% B ) 225,261 292,649
Adjustments for: BT SIE AR
Finance costs B TSR AR 17,772 17,463
Depreciation of property, VI - R RRERETE
plant and equipment 5,590 3,777
Amortisation of prepaid lease TESH A 5
payments 430 429
Reversal of write down of inventories — #[E1 7% S - 304,460
Interest income MBI A (2,929) (1,912
Operating cash flows before EEESTHAIMNLE
movements in working capital Bemne 246,124 616,866
Increase in inventories FEEM (499,957) (698,862)
Increase in trade and other receivables & 5 & H fih fE U 3R IE 12 hn (44,209) (12,847)
(Increase) decrease in bills receivables JEUZ 4 (3L h0) i > (3,486) 2,198
Increase (decrease) in derivative PTESmMITAEEINORD)
financial instruments 2,196 (17,100)
Increase in trade and other payables & 5 K H fth fE{~t ZRIEZ A0 67,588 47,894
Increase in bills payables FERTERE N 15,442 128,600
Cash (used in) from operations (A MERE (216,302) 66,749
Interest paid BAFLE (13,696) (17,463)
Tax refunded BB = 42,250
Tax paid BEAEIE (68,546) (36,864)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM wESEE (FTA) TSRS FE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (298,544) 54,672
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
(Increase) decrease in pledged BRI TR (G0 Rk
bank deposits (22,865) 16,273
Purchase of and deposit paid for BEME  HENRE
property, plant and equipment UERBEAES (6,404) (4,145)
(Increase) decrease in restricted SR BISRIT I SR (3800 R
bank deposits (3,945) 20,468
Advance to related parties [FIRAIE 5 B3 (1,973) (16)
Acquisition of a subsidiary I BE — B A R 35 3,982 -
Interest received BHFE 437 1,912
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM REEB(FAR) IEREFHE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (30,768) 34,492
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
GERESRER(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 i E —E—FF X A=1H1XEA

Six months ended 30 June
BZEAA=1+HIEARHAEA

2010 2009
—E-EF —ETREF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
(Unaudited)
(REEFEZ)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
New bank borrowings raised Mg TEE 1,513,880 558,364
Advance from related parties RAE B 277,910 -
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITEE (1,144,859) (422,310)
Repayment to related parties MIEAE T E (220,201) (85,265)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING MEETBEBREFEE
ACTIVITIES 426,730 50,789
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND REeERBESESEEB FEEM
CASH EQUIVALENTS 97,418 139,953
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT #1184 BB Z/EIER
BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD 69,428 44,174
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE  /MEE =& 51y =2
RATE CHANGES 555 (51)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT iR RIS ZEIER
END OF THE PERIOD (BRITEBEES)
represented by bank balances
and cash 167,401 184,076
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fn e MR RME

For the six months ended 30 June 2010 HE —Z—Z4 XA=+HIN@AA

1. GENERAL

The Company is incorporated and registered as an exempted
company in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands with limited liability. The shares of the Company
have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) with effect from 12 July 2010. The Company’s
registered office is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and its place
of business is located at Taizhou Industrial Zone of Metal Recycling
Fengjiang, Lugiao, Taizhou, Zhejiang, the PRC.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 37.

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries is
Renminbi (“RMB”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) for the convenience of the
shareholders as the Company is listed in Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements for the current period cover
the six months period ended 30 June 2010. The corresponding
comparative amounts shown for certain notes to the consolidated
financial statements cover a twelve months period from 1 January
2009 to 31 December 2009 and therefore may not be comparable
with amounts shown for the current period.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited « Interim Report 2010

1. —R&EHR
AARIREFASHEARERF S SN
AL R REREBRAR o RATEIKGD
R_B—ZFE+A+_BRNEBBME S
BRAR([ERZA]) LW o ARGz 5
9% = &2 i1 7 Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands Jz B & 2 4 B 7 78 Hp BT T
LemEBRETHEANGEELEER -

ARBIRREZERAR - EMBARZ EE
ETEII M EST

ARFREMBARMINGEEE /SARE
(TAR®]) - ARARREFTELT &
FTEER - el HRABT(ET2
5I) e

AEEGR A B RRAEHE T —TFA
AZ+BIEANEARRE - SRR BHRERET
MR S EREA T TNGF
—A—BEZEENF+_A=+—H+=
& A HAR - Eut - ERMae B ARNEIE AT R
R o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 i E —E—FF X A=1H1XEA

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current interim period, the Group has applied, for the first
time, the following new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”), which
are effective for the accounting period beginning on 1 January 2010.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Amendment to HKFRS 5 as part of
Improvements to HKFRSs 2008

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2009

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

HKAS 39 (Amendment) Eligible Hedged Items

HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Additional Exemptions for First-time
Adopters

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations

HK(FRIC) = Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Owners

The Group applies HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations
prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition
date is on or after 1 January 2010. The requirements in HKAS 27
(Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements in relation
to accounting for changes in ownership interests in a subsidiary after
control is obtained and for loss of control of a subsidiary are also
applied prospectively by the Group on or after 1 January 2010.

As the transaction during the current interim period in which
HKFRS 3 (Revised) is applicable is not significant and there is no
change in ownership interest in subsidiaries in which HKAS 27
(Revised) is applicable, the directors of the Company consider that
the application of HKFRS 3 (Revised), HKAS 27 (Revised) and the
consequential amendments to other HKFRSs had no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the current
or prior accounting periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 B E —E—FF X A=+H 1N A

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. ER#HiI RS EBUERE

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS #B|([&HHBHMBHEEN ) (&)

(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Results of the Group in future periods may be affected by future  ZANEBERKIKHIBEEE e 2 FETE

transactions for which HKFRS 3 (Revised), HKAS 27 (Revised) and & H|E 358 (K(&5]) ~ BB T#HAIE

the consequential amendments to the other HKFRSs are applicable. 2758 (4&ME5]) R B BB 18 s R AY 48
FEEETEANARRZ T E -

The application of the other new and revised HKFRSs had no effect  fER E 5] R&IET H ARG ELT
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the current &% AREE R B BigBT LR R4S B
or prior accounting periods. TEMTREN T E -

The Group has not early applied the following new or revised  ZAREEITAKRIZEFER AT BB B AREL
standards, amendments or interpretations that have been issued but  EYFTE] sk AMEFT 2R « (BF] 72k -
are not yet effective:

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2010! BB TR REAR| H_E-TERFAUBRE
CHEN Az B
HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures* BASHER S48  BBiE R
(&1&57)
HKAS 32 (Amendment) Classification of Right Issues? HBQHEREI0N  HEBoLE
SEHEN)
HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Limited Exemption from Comparative AT EREER BT BB s
HKFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time F1R(EFIAR) RIBTR RN L RER
Adopters® ZBRE#H R
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments® BAGRIRE AR TR T AS
£
HK(IFRIC) - Int 14 Prepayments of a Minimum Funding 45 (ERFERE BENREESES
(Amendment) Requirement* RELEe)-2E
F4FETA)
HK(FRIC) - Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities BE(ERMBRE MWERILEESRARE
with Equity Instruments?® REZE®)
—RBE195%
' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 and 1 T R-E-—FEEL+A-BPR-E——F—F—
January 2011, as appropriate Hek v &Ftam = BRAER - iEA
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010 2 RoE-EE-A AR TEELHEER
¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 3. Eii—git B— B 4EBtEE
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011 4, Efiffif A—B v #BEEnEER
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 5. ;if%_zg_ B—Bs > EnnEE
AR

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited « Interim Report 2010




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 i E —E—FF X A=1H1XEA

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets and will be
effective from 1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.
The Standard requires all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be measured at either amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that (i) are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows and
(i) have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost. All other debt investments and equity investments
are measured at fair value. The application of HKFRS 9 might affect
the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial assets.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the
other new and revised standards, amendments or interpretations will
have no material impact on the results and the financial position of
the Group.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments, which
are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 B E —E—FF X A=+H 1N A

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the period
are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
from the effective date of acquisition and up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those
used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.

Business combinations on or after 1 January 2010

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition
under HKFRS 3 (2008) are recognised at their fair values, except
that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19
Employee Benefits respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to the replacement by the
Group of an acquiree’s sharebased payment awards are measured
in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment; and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Noncurrent Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that
Standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 i E —E—FF X A=1H1XEA

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes other than construction in progress, are
stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment other than construction in progress over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment
in the course of construction for production or for its own use
purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost less any
recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in
the period in which the item is derecognised.

Prepaid lease payments

Payments for obtaining land use rights are accounted for as prepaid
lease payments and are stated at cost and amortised on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms. Prepaid lease payments which are
to be amortised in the next twelve months or less are classified as
current assets.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 HiZ —ZE—ZF /X A=1+HI1~#AH

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the two
categories, including loans and receivables and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
At the end of reporting period subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade and other receivables, bills
receivables, amounts due from related parties, pledged bank
deposits, restricted bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 i E —E—FF X A=1H1XEA

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group’s financial assets classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are derivatives that are not designated and
effective as hedging instruments.

At the end of each reporting period subsequent to initial recognition,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in consolidated statement of comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise.

Impairment of financial assets

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
impacted.

For loans and receivables, an objective evidence of impairment could
include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
e default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.

Financial assets such as trade receivables that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the respective credit period, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

An impairment loss is recognised in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 B E —E—FF X A=+H 1N A

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
to consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
The Group’s financial liabilities are generally classified into financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other financial
liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 i E —E—FF X A=1H1XEA

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

The Group’s financial liabilities classified as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are derivatives that are not designated
and effective as hedging instruments.

At the end of each reporting period subsequent to initial recognition,
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value recognised directly in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, bills
payables, amounts due to related parties and bank borrowings)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives not designated and effective as hedging instruments are
initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair values
at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive income
immediately.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 HiZ —ZE—ZF /X A=1+HI1~#AH

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
in the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when goods are delivered
and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised as revenue over the periods
necessary to match them with the costs for which they are intended
to compensate, on a systematic basis. Government grants that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease
term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building are
considered separately for the purpose of lease classification, unless
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and building elements, in which case, the entire lease is generally
treated as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment. To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can
be made reliably, leasehold interests in land are accounted for as
operating leases and amortised over the lease term on a straight-line
basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 i E —E—FF X A=1H1XEA

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other year and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 HiZ —ZE—ZF /X A=1+HI1~#AH

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised
in consolidated statement of comprehensive income, except when it
relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 i E —E—FF X A=1H1XEA

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of Group’s entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity (the translation reserve).

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial period, are
discussed below.

Provision for inventories

Management of the Group reviews the inventories listing on a
category-by-category basis at the end of reporting period, and
assesses whether the cost of the finished products will exceed
their net realisable value. Management estimates the net realisable
value for such inventories based primarily on the latest resale value
and quoted prices on applicable commodity exchanges. If the
market price of inventories are to decline, additional provision may
be required. All the Group’s inventories were stated at cost in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the end of reporting
period.

5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remained unchanged
from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
bank borrowings, amounts due to related companies, and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising capital and
various reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. The directors of the Company also balance the overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues
as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the six months ended 30 June 2010.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 HiZ —ZE—ZF /X A=1+HI1~#AH

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6 %Eﬂlﬂ
Ba. Categories of financial instruments R T EmiERR
At At
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
R=Z—2F HN-TThF
NA=tH +-A=+—8H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERx FAT
Financial assets SREE
Derivative financial instruments @TE%E&IE - 1,072
Loans and receivables (including cash KR EBGIR(BIERE R
and cash equivalents) fﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁ B) 492,349 387,925
Financial liabilities SRIEE
Derivative financial instruments PTEemTA 2,731 1,603
Amortised cost BSERAR 1,805,934 1,345,702
6b. Financial risk management objectives and polices b. £RtEMREE B R RBUER
The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other $$@E’JI SRMTADEE S REMEK

receivables, bills receivables, amounts due from (to) related
parties, derivative financial instruments, pledged bank deposits,
restricted bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and
other payables, bills payables and bank borrowings. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited « Interim Report 2010

IR - RRRE - KRR BE )T 508
TESMIE  DEMRITER - EHIR
TER - RITEHLE S - EHREMEN
FA - BNREBEMRTEE -ZFEWMTA
FHIER M ERE - ﬁﬁﬁ%i%%%ﬁlﬂ

MEREEM SRR (EERRE - FXRER
KEMbERRER) - Egﬂiﬂﬁ&mébﬁﬁﬂ

b o BREZERRMEIGTHBREEHNT
X o BIREE IR N EE 1T 2 F A LAREIR M B
B R R EUE S i e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 HiZ —ZE—ZF A=+ HI/~EAH

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and polices

(continued)

Market risk

(i) Currency risk
The Group has foreign currency sales, purchases, trade and
other receivables, pledged bank deposits, restricted bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables,
bills payables, amounts due to related parties, bank borrowings
and derivative financial liability, which expose the Group to
market risk arising from changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management closely monitors its foreign currency
risk exposure and enters into foreign currency forward contracts
should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets, monetary
liabilities and derivative financial liability denominated in United
States Dollars (“USD”) and Euro (“EUR”) at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

6 SRIAE)

b. £RIAMREIEBRERBR(E)

% E R
() E#ER

AEBERBINEES 5 REMEK
IR BEMRITER - RBRBIRTE
F o RITEBRRE - BHREMEN
PR - BNRE - BNRETHEA R
1TREE ROTA & B A& T S I E & X
BEREROTIEERR - AEBREILE
SN R IBR - X1 EEENEYIE
EONERRR - X ENE BRI LINER
HaH -

REEHMPLEER - AEBPAFET([E
T RET(TRITDetENEEEE -
EEBAERTASRBENRERER
-
At At
30 June 31 December
2010 2009

R=B-8%F N-TINF
AA=tHA +-A=t-8

HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FET
Monetary assets E¥EE
usD E7T 42,925 68,294
EUR BT 83,688 435
Monetary liabilities E¥aE
usD E7T 1,134,184 945,657
EUR BT 41,577 1,241
Derivative financial liability TTEERmEes
usD ET 99 1,603
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 B E —E—FF X A=+H 1N A

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and polices
(continued)
Market risk (continued)
(i) Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis
The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currencies of USD
and EUR when such currencies are different from the functional
currency of the relevant group entities.

6. €@ T A (&)
6b. & BE KR E IE B 1R R BR ()

s E k()
() E#ERE)

AEBETERSTMBTY AR EE
ERMEEEMEYHZEEENER

A 5% sensitivity rate is used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel because it represents

REINFRSREEABZRINERR
R 5% BURRE L R - THEZ L R

REBEEMFHEET LB ARKE
KAl IRAN LR - ER AR 2
BEE BT RBTHENEER
B BRREMGEBHTE  AEBRHA
ETLAANRBRERBTEAREHE
EE%FTEHIRE LR B IR SN K EN RO IR
BT RZIVR

management’s assessment of the possible change in USD and
EUR against RMB rate. On the basis of the above assets and
liabilities denominated in USD and EUR at the end of the reporting
period, and assuming all other variables remain unchanged, a 5%
weakening of the USD and strengthening of EUR against RMB
throughout the period would give rise to fluctuations in post-tax
profit for the period in the following magnitude, and vice versa:

At At
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
R=Z—FF RN_ZTTLF
AB=+B +-F=+-H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHEx FAT
Increase (decrease) in profit: EFIE IR A) -
Monetary assets and liabilities EWEERAER
USD weakening against RMB ETHAREEE 41,458 33,679
EUR strengthening against RMB BUTH ARBAE 1,758 (34)
Derivative financial liability fTESmEsE
USD weakening against RMB ETHARBEE 4 60

EEERS  ARHKRREXRRB
AER - HZBERESTATRKRESR
SINE Rz ©

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative
of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the period end exposure
does not reflect the exposure during the period.

R TT MERTTAI - 25 A T H A
FEINE R o

Other than USD and EUR, the Group does not have any other major
exposure to foreign currency risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 HiZ —ZE—ZF A=+ HI/~EAH

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and polices
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due to the
fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate on bank deposits,
variable-rate bank borrowings, bills payables and amounts due to
related parties.

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to its fixed-
rate pledged bank deposits, bank borrowings and amounts due
to related parties. It is the Group’s policy to maintain a majority of
borrowings at fixed rate of interest so as to reduce the cash flow
interest rate risk.

The Group has not entered into any interest rate hedging contracts
or any other interest rate related derivative financial instrument.
However, management monitors the Group’s related interest rate
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure when the need arises.

6%@1&(%)
b. tRIREMREEBIZENEBR(E)

s E k()

(i) FIEmEE
AEBRRITER  FLRITEE B
NRE KRN RET SRIANE BT I5H
TREMELRSRENREL -

AEENAFHENERBEIERERD
EIRRITER ﬁEﬂ%E&%H%@@E
RIBBR - KEIE‘JBZ%Z%H%k%B%%
B RERER  REREREFE
R o

AREBEW BT AR AR R E R A L RE
Tﬂﬂ“‘“’*ﬁﬁ%fi%%ﬁ*&lﬂ Am o B
Be® Yt E A S BAERR A R E R IR
JA%%%E;MJ%K?‘NJ%HKM

Sensitivity analysis BT
The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary liabilities which E/\\\i H4&E A B2 EMEFBHAR
carried variable interest rates at the end of the reporting period are as EFEEHBERMENT
follows:
At At
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
R-E—FF ZENF
~BA=+H ‘f’_ﬁ =+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Liabilities afE 248,681 314,820

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on
the exposure to risk of interest rate changes for variable-rate bank
borrowings, bills payables and amounts due to related parties at the
end of the reporting period and management considers that such
exposure for variable-rate bank deposits is minimal as the amount
involved is not significant.

A 100 basis points increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest risk internally to key management personnel because it
represents management’s assessment of the possible change in
interest rate.

THBRESTDHERZRPEE AT
BRITREE  BNRBENENEEL K
HE MR ZEFRRME - BRFTSEE
PR RERERRZLRITEROH
REBHABI A o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 HiZ —ZE—ZF /X A=1+HI1~#AH

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and polices
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year
would be decreased/ increased by the following magnitude:

6%@1&%@

b. & BERETE B 1R SR

B AR ()

(i) FIEE (5
BT A ()
fi ) 8 0,
T

(&)

100 EE M B E
RS B EIR R LR s A

B IEINEIEE AT

Six months
ended Year ended
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
Bz BHZE
—EB-2F —TThF
AA=tH +=-H=+—H
LB B LIEFE
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET FAT
Decrease/increase in profit AR L1 0 2,077 2,492
(iii) Other price risk (i) B ERKERE
The Group is exposed to price risk through its investment in copper NEFRIFEERIRHES O ME L ER
and aluminium future contracts. A o
Sensitivity analysis R E ST

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to price risk of copper and aluminium at the end
of reporting period. If the quote future price of the copper and
aluminium had been 5% higher/lower, the Group’s post-tax profit
for the period would be increased/decreased by the following
magnitude:

THBBEEDT I ERNG 2|4
IR ERBRBTE -
BIIRIE EF+, T B&E5% -

RS
s R B E & 4
A= B AR

B0, WA EEAT

Six months
ended Year ended
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
BZE HE
—E-FF —ETNEF
ANA=+H +=ZA=+—H
IEREA IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET AT
Increase/decrease in profit i M3 0, R A 1,768 1,077

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative
of the inherent other price risk as the period end exposure does not
reflect the exposure during the period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 HiZ —ZE—ZF A=+ HI/~EAH

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and polices
(continued)

Credit risk

As at 30 June 2010, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at
the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with good reputations.

There was no significant concentration of credit risk as the Group’s
financial assets spread over a number of counterparties and
customers.

Liquidity risk

The objective of the Group is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and the flexibility through the use of bank
borrowings.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity
for non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at the end
of the reporting period.

In addition, the following table details the Group’s liquidity analysis
for its derivative financial instruments. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted contractual net cash (inflows)
and outflows on derivative instruments that settle on a net basis,
and the undiscounted gross (inflows) and outflows on those
derivatives that require gross settlement. The liquidity analysis for
the Group’s derivative financial instruments are prepared based on
the contractual maturities as the management considers that the
contractual maturities are essential for an understanding of the timing
of the cash flows of derivatives.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
EAE M BREME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 2 —Z—Z & ;X A=+ H L/~ EA

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. SR THR(E)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and polices 6b. £ BEM EIE B IZ M EE (&)
(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) e (E)
Liquidity and interest risk tables TEE L RFFRE R

At 30 June 2010 “E-B§5A=1A
Non-derivative financial liabilities FiTESMERE
Trade and other payables B REMERFE
Bills payable ENEE

— variable rate %8

- non-interest bearing — P&
Amounts due to related parties ENEERTE

— fixed rate -E8

— variable rate %8

- non-interest bearing — P&
Bank borrowings BITEE

— fixed rate -E8

— variable rate %8

Derivatives - net settlement

Aluminium and copper future contracts

Derivatives - gross settlement

Foreign currency forward contracts SNEEIAY
~inflow A
~outflow =i

fIETR-EEFE
BRAHERY

fIETA-GBEAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 HiE — T —FF X A=+H1XEA

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and polices
(continued)

6. €@ T A (&)
6b. & BE KR E IE B 1R R BR ()

Liquidity risk (continued) REELE(E)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued) REBEERAZEE T (E)
Total
carrying
On value at the
Weighted  demand or Total  endof the
average  lessthan 1-3 3 months Over undiscounted  reporting
interest rate 1 month months 1o 1 year 1year cash flows period
2§55
mE  REXSY -2 ={#RZ AERBS 4£HEAZ
FaRE —EANR =f8R -5  -FN0E REgE RELE
%  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKPO00  HK$O00  HK$'000
% FiEn TEL FiET TEL T FEL
At 31 December 2009 —EEhE+=A=t-8
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTESRAE
Trade and other payables BANEMENTE - 7883% 27,105 9,677 - 115617 115617
Bills payable ENEE
- variable rate —2E 2.44 8,556 58 14,637 - 23,251 23,118
- non-interest bearing -TiE - 22,752 45,504 22,752 - 91,008 91,008
Amounts due to related parties [EREE ST
~variable rate interest bearing —FER 1.25 26,651 230 1056 111,854 139,791 138,376
- non-interest bearing -TiE - 66,683 - - 111,854 178537 178,587
Bank borrowings BTEE
- fixed rate -8 3.58 180,268 123,287 324,365 - 627,920 622,602
- variable rate —2E 1.69 16,014 48 161,586 - 178018 176,444
399,759 196,602 534,073 223,708 1,354,142 1,345,702
Derivatives - gross settlement fTETR-HEAE
Foreign currency forward contracts INERERAH)
—inflow —MmA - - (4,725)  (162,091) - (156,816)  (156,816)
- outflow — - - 4,750 153,669 - 168,419 158,419
- 25 1,578 - 1,603 1,603

BEaRMEEARAR hHHRE 2010
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 B E —E—FF X A=+H 1N A

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6c. Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group
are determined as follows:

e the fair value of derivative financial instruments traded on active
markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices;
and

e the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices or
rates from observable current market transactions as input.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of financial
position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that
are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped
into Levels 1 to 2 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable.

e Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or
liabilities.

e |evel 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs
other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited « Interim Report 2010
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 HiE — T —FF X A=+H1XEA

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. T A(E)

6c. Fair value (continued) 6c. AFEE)

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of financial REIBRRAREANAEETE(E)
position (continued)

As at 30 June 2010 R-E-ZFEXA=1H
Level 1 Level 2 Total
—#& =& st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FExT FHET

Financial liabilities at FVTPL BAFEFAEBENESHEAE

Derivative financial liability TTESRAasi 2,632 99 2,731

As at 31 December 2009 R-BEAF+=A=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Total
— % wET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT THT FHET

Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABENSREE

Derivative financial assets TESREE 1,072 - 1,072

Financial liabilities at FVTPL BAFEFABZNSREE
Derivative financial liability PTEEmEE - 1,603 1,603

There were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 during the #HZE_Z—ZTFXA=t+HItNEAZFEHE
six months ended 30 June 2010, nor during the year ended 31 Z—ZZNF+_A=+—HILFE  —fHA
December 2009. 2 AR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 B E —E—FF X A=+H 1N A

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s revenue represents the amount received and receivable
for the sales of metal scrap, net of sales related taxes, during the
period.

Operating segments are identified on the basis of internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by
the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) in order to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performance. The
executive directors of the Company are identified as the CODM
and they regularly review the internal report on gross profit derived
from different business activities and different products to assess
performance and allocate resources of the Group.

The Group is mainly engaged in the principal business of metal
recycling, involving the recycling of mixed metal scrap into copper
scrap, steel scrap, aluminium scrap, iron scrap and other metal
scrap. The Group is also engaged in the foundry business which
involves the production and sale of aluminium-alloy ingots and
copper rod and wire, and wholesales business which involves trading
of other metal scrap. The operating segments are classified into
three categories of business activities:

(i) metal recycling business;

(i foundry business; and

(iiy wholesales business.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited « Interim Report 2010
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
EAE M BREME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 2 —Z—Z & ;X A=+ H L/~ EA

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. WS R o &R (&)

Segment revenues and segment results DEBI R M D B AR
An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment revenues and AR AREEILA] MO PRS0 2HD
segment results by reportable segment is as below. EBU R M BREELE DT ©
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 BE-_Z—ZFXA=1+HILAHEA
Wholesales
Metal recycling business Foundry business business
SEBLER HEER HEBER
Other
Other Copper metal scrap
Copper Steel  Aluminium Iron metal Aluminium-  rodand  without
scrap scrap scrap scrap scrap  alloy ingots wire processing Elimination Total
At WgR  HtRm

4] &4 et BE LR Fi73 % IESE H# st
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK§000  HK$'000
Tér FEx TéEr  TEx  FEn  TER  TEn  TER  TEn  TER

REVENUE g

External sales e
Inter-segment sales AHEEE
Total segment revenue AHEEE
Segment proft A
Otherincome EfA
Other gains and losses EfhEREE
Distribution costs DERA
Administrative expenses THEx
Other expenses EAZ
Finance costs B
Profit before tax BEanER
Income tax expense FEHER
Profit for the period iyl

EA&XEEFR AR FHIHRS 2010




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 2= —ZE—ZTFXH=+HIt/~EA

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. Hﬁlﬁ‘é&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ*ﬂ(ﬁs)

Segment revenues and segment results (continued) DERU IS N SRR (4E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2009 (Unaudited) BE-_ZZEAFE<A=+HIEAEA
(RBEZ)
Wholesales
Metal recycling business Foundry business business
SERLER BEER HEXH
Other
Other Copper  metal scrap
Copper Steel  Aluminium Iron metal  Aluminium- rod and without
scrap scrap scrap scrap scrap  alloy ingots wire processing  Elimination Total
Eft SRR AN

s 23 B BE  BEE g fif IBcE U gt
HKS000  HKS'000  HKFO00  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$000  HK§'000  HK$000
TRr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEnr  TEr  TEnr  TER

REVENUE g

External sales IEpsEE 185,878 100,871 53,49 32,462 8,043 49,917 - 244902 - 675569
Inter-segment sales AHEEE 113,147 61,402 32,563 19,760 4,8% 30,385 - 149077 (411,230)

Total segment revenue AEhEEE 200025 162273 86059 52222 12939 80,302 - 393979 (411230 675569
Segment profit DEEA 130,780 55,878 11,666 9,937 21,847 6,477 - 12,413 - 248998
Other income Hil A 3,664
Other gains and losses oz REE 71,608
Distribution costs DEKE (4o7)
Administrative expenses TR (12,496)
Other expenses % (1,258)
Finance costs BRI A (17,469)
Profit before tax BRBATRR 202,649
Income tax expense SRS (80,140)

Profit for the period B 212,509

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same  a] 2 ) 9 ZBEL 49 MT s 3 Fir it 7N & B & =+ B
as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 3. Segment 5 o S EHEMIER D ZEAER G - KoOHC
profit represents the profit resulted in each segment without  HhUg A - ElhzERERE - DA -~ 17
allocation of other income, other gains and losses, distribution Y - EME S - BEK A &S ir,rgsﬁ
costs, administrative expenses, other expenses, finance costs and %% -« It AR R BIHITEEZREIAESAE
income tax expense. This is the measure reporting to the executive B & eI &R E o

directors of the Company for the purposes of resource allocation and

performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates. SEEIEE AR TTH IS R =BG -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 i E —E—FF X A=1H1XEA

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment assets and segment liabilities

Information on segment assets and segment liabilities of the Group
are not reviewed by the CODM for the purpose of resource allocation
and performance assessment nor otherwise regularly provided to
the CODM. As a result, no analysis of segment assets and segment
liabilities are presented.

Geographical information

Over 90% of external revenues of the Group during the six months
ended 30 June 2010 and 2009 are attributable to customers
established in the PRC, the place of domicile of the Group’s major
operating entities. Majority of the Group’s non-current assets are
located in the PRC.

Information about major customers

No individual customer contributed to more than 10% of the Group’s
revenue for the six months ended 30 June 2010 (six months ended
30 June 2009 (unaudited): Nil).

8. COST OF SALES
Included in cost of sales are the following reversal of write down of
inventories:

7. Wz K 2 JPE R ()
DEMEERDHRE

mA AR BN HEE RS B EERER
B REERE S BB R R AT R A
R FRE RS REERY - RILE25D
PEERDBEEHDIT -

bl E Y
BE_T-ZFEN_ZETAFANA=THIL
NER - AREREE R HRRE 0% K IR
WAKRBEFE(AEETELEERNT
ME)RIZNEF » MARD FERBEEN
RAE e

TEEFWER
BE-T-THEAA=TAHIEAMEA - HE
fERIE S BB RN EEMBA10%(BE=
TTAENA=+BIAER RERR)
=) o

8. HERA
BERAEIE A T F SRR E -

Six months ended 30 June
BZEARA=1HIEXEA

2010 2009

—E-ZF ZETNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

T T

(Unaudited)

(REEZ)

Reversal of write down of inventories £ [EI1F &MU - 304,318

Management assesses whether the cost of inventories exceed their
net realisable value at the end of the reporting period. Management
estimates the net realisable value for inventories with reference to
the ask price of metal scrap in the relevant markets and the quoted
prices of metal on applicable commodity exchanges at the end of
reporting period. As at 30 June 2010, because the market prices of
the commodities were higher than the respective purchase price of
inventories held, no provision was recorded. During the six months
ended 30 June 2009, the Group recorded a reversal of write down of
inventories which was provided in 2008 because the market prices
of the commodities had dropped significantly as compared with the
purchase price of certain inventories held as at 31 December 2008.

All the Group’s inventories were stated at cost in the consolidated
statement of financial position at 30 June 2010 and 31 December
2009.

EEERERPLEEATIHFEENAESEE
BEFEERFE - BRELZHBEMIEN
BEeBEEMBHERRZINSBRERN
AFEAEREE N E—TF A=
H AREGTMERMSETENSBREE
BE - FALBEESHE - BE-_TTNF
ANAZTBIEREA - AEBEBEFEHR
BR - ZEE TR S N\ FEAERTISE
BER_ZENF+_A=1+—HBFEET
FERREEXRE NEMmEL -

RoB—ZEXAS+ER-ZEAF+=
A=+—8  AEEFAEEEURARE
& BRI -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
EAE M BREME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 HiE — T —FF X A=+H1XEA

9. OTHER INCOME

9. HAthg A

Six months ended 30 June
BEXA=THLXEA

- 2010 2009
—ETNEF
HK$’000
FHET
(Unaudited)
(REEERZ)

Interest income FEMA

Rental income for a temporary lease Tk 4 A S YA
Government subsidies (note) BB (HI5E)
Others HAh

note:  The Group received unconditional government grants from a local
municipal government as an encouragement for the development
and advancement of business.

10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

1,911

1,136
617

3,664

BiEt 0 M BN RSB A EE R B RIDES
f4a TA L BB EBRTHED

10. Hitt = R BB

Six months ended 30 June
BZEXA=1RHIEX<EA

_ 2009

—ETNEF
HK$'000
FAT
(Unaudited)
(REEEZ)

Gain from changes in fair value of PTHESRMTARTHEZ S (M)
derivative financial instruments (note) 71,308
Net foreign exchange gains b 5 W TR 446

Impairment loss recognised on B 5 N H A fE R IB IR HY

trade and other receivables HEEE (146)
71,608

note:  The amounts were derived from copper and aluminium future
contracts and foreign currency forward contracts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
EAE M BREME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 HiE — T —FF X A=+H1XEA

11. FINANCE COSTS 11. BA#ERRAS

Six months ended 30 June
BEZA<A=1THIEAEA

2009
ZETNF
HK$’000
FH&T
(Unaudited)
(RE&FZ)
Interest on: ATEENFE
— bank borrowings wholly repayable —BRAFREBNIRITEE
within five years 14,515
— amounts due to related parties — BT EAE 5 OB 2,545
— bills payable — R 403
17,463
12. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 12. BREL AR
Six months ended 30 June
BZEA~A=1+RHILAEA
2009
ZZETNF
HK$’000
FA&T
(Unaudited)
(RigFEZ)
Profit before tax has been arrived at BREBLADEA - Bk
after charging:
Directors’ emoluments (Note 13) =2 (FIFE13) 117
Other staff costs HAh B TR 25,466
Retirement benefit scheme contributions, EREFFHEMETR(TBRIFEES
excluding those of directors RRE R EIHERO 474
Total staff costs B TR 48%58 26,057
Cost of inventories recognised as RBFRFERA
an expense 426,571
Listing expenses, included in WY FFAERMES
other expenses -
Depreciation of property, plant and W WERRETE
equipment 3,777
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments  FE{IHH S #5 429
Auditors’ remuneration TS _

AAE R EERE 2010




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) f &
FE B BREME(E) s, W
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 2 —Z—Z & X A=+ H L/~ EA o’

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
Directors
Details of the emoluments paid by the Group to the directors of the

13. EEREEME
s
AEFABRT N AR ESHHE BN

Company for the period are as follows: T
Retirement
benefit
Salaries and scheme
Fees allowances  contributions Total
BIREF
e  FEREHR BE 3 ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT FHT FHT
Six months ended BEZZ-SF-A=1H
30 June 2010: LERMER :
Executive directors: HITES -
Mr. Fang Ankong (“Mr. Fang’) FRERE(HRED
Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen Stephanus Maria van Ooijen
(“Mr. van Ooijen”) %4 (Tvan Ooijent4 )
Mr. Gu Liyong BEELAE
Non-executive directors: FRTES
Mr. Li Xikui (note) FHZE R A (M)
Dr. Loke Yu (note) BEsmE LT (HI5E)
Mr. Ralph Sytze Ybema Ralph Sytze Ybema%t 4
Ms. Zhang Jingdong (note) EWEz L (M)

Six months ended 30 June 2009

BE-SEAEAAZTR

(unaudited): AR A (REER) |
Executive directors: HITES
Mr. Fang FRE - 66 2 68
Mr. van Ooijen van Ooijen%t £ - - - -
Mr. Gu Liyong BEELE - 48 1 49
Non-executive director: FRITES
Mr. Ralph Sytze Ybema Ralph Sytze Ybemast 4 - - - -

note:

The directors were independent non-executive directors and BffsE -
appointed on 23 June 2010.

- 114 3 117

REEFABTHRITEERR ST
FRAZ+=ARET -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 HiE — T —FF X A=+H 1N A

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

Employees

Of the five highest paid individuals of the Group, one (six months
ended 30 June 2009 (unaudited): two) was director, whose
emoluments are included in the disclosures above. The emoluments
of the remaining four (six months ended 30 June 2009 (unaudited):
three) individuals were as follows:

13. EEREEM S (E)

==

RAEEIEESHFTMALES  Hb—%
(BEZZZNAFRA=THIEREACGRE
BZ)  MB)RES  EMC#HN EXW
KE - R THR(BE_ZTAFAA=T
BIEREA « CREFER) + =8) B AR
T

Six months ended 30 June
BZEAA=1THLREA

2010 2009

—E-ZF ZETNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FiET FET

(Unaudited)

(R#gaiZ)

Salaries and other allowances e R HEAMERL 1,015 409
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R /Rk1E FIEH 214 2k 23 20
1,038 429

The emoluments for each of the five highest paid individuals were
below HK$1,000,000.

During the period, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
None of the directors waived any emoluments during the period.

FE&=H AL BEHER1,000,00087T °

R AREYEAEAEERAER=H
AEXME - ERTSIREMAREE S
PRINAZR SR B O B2 B sk BE B AR 15 © HAPRAR
BEFRRETAME -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FE B BREME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 HiE — T —FF X A=TH1XEA

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14. FRIEHBAX

Six months ended 30 June
BZEARA=1+HIEXEA

2009
—ETNEF
HK$’000
FAT
(Unaudited)
(REeEZ)
Current tax: RNEATRIA :
Hong Kong B 1,199
PRC Enterprises Income Tax PR TSR -
1,199
Underprovision in prior periods: RBTERRETR
PRC Enterprises Income Tax TSR -
Deferred tax (Note 28) IRERIA (MI7E28) 78,941
80,140
PRC =8

The Group’s PRC subsidiaries were subject to PRC Enterprises #HZE_ZT—ZFXA=F+HINER - &%

Income Tax at the rate of 25% for the six months ended 30 June B BIK B A R AL25%MF R (BEZ

2010 (six months ended 30 June 2009 (unaudited): 25%). TZNFRNAZTHIEAEACRESERZ)
25% )R Bl EFTIS L o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 i EZE —E—FF X A=TH 1N A

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 14. SRR (&)

Hong Kong BE

All the Hong Kong subsidiaries are subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax — Frg &M B A T BIES ALt ER R H
at the rate of 16.5% on their respective estimated assessable profits. F35216.5% M Tl R & s E7E T B8 o

The income tax expense for the period can be reconciled to the profit  BARNFTE R S o Bi4R & 2 E IS = NG T
before tax per the consolidated statement of comprehensive income  Bim FM¥EREAAT -

as follows:
Six months ended 30 June
BEASA=1+TRHLAEA
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FA&T
(Unaudited)
(REEZ)
Profit before tax [ 75 B3 ) 225,261 292,649
Tax at applicable tax rates (note) AR R E 2 BB (M) 56,652 72,657
Tax effect of expenses not deductible 7N A] 081 FI % 89 F1 TH 5 22
for tax purpose 4,920 1,041
Tax effect of income not taxable for BRI AR T T 27 2
tax purpose (98) (63)
Deferred tax provided on dividends fh P B A R R B TEHR 2 B IR TE
withholding tax on PRC subsidiaries 6,897 6,495
Underprovision in prior periods B EEEE TR 1 -
Income tax expense for the period BNPTIS TR 68,372 80,140

note: As the Group operates in different tax jurisdictions, separate  Bis : BHRAEBERTRABRGDAERLS © 1%
reconciliations using the domestic tax rate in each individual tax EMIE A AR B RET BRI H8R
jurisdiction have been aggregated and presented. BEHET -

There was no significant unprovided deferred tax at the end of each R EMWMELEE R - WM E AR BERELTR
reporting period. 15 o

15. DIVIDENDS 15. RE

No dividend was paid or proposed during the six months ended 30 EZE_-Z—ZF ;5 A=+ 0 -/~ E AR

June 2010 (six months ended 30 June 2009 (unaudited): Nil), nor has sk @#HR S (BE-—SThEA=1TH

any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting period (31 [F7NE B (GREEEAZ) - ) - mE 2FHELE

December 2009: Nil). FHERMTERZTMNRE(ZETAF+Z
A=+—H:8&)-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 HiE — T —FF X A=TH1XEA

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the
following data:

16. #REAF
FRERENTIRIATEEE

Six months ended 30 June
BZEARA=1THLREA

2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAET
(Unaudited)
(RE&EZ)
Profit for the period for the purpose of 518 & A& E A8 & Kl 69 A P93 Fl
basic earnings per share 156,889 212,509

Weighted average number of FEEREABFN LB
ordinary shares for the purpose of ke E R

basic earnings per share

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation of basic earnings per share for the period has been
adjusted for the 749,999,900 shares issued pursuant to the
capitalisation issue in July 2010 (see Note 36(b)), which was assumed
to occur at 1 January 2009.

No diluted earnings per share are presented as there were no
potential ordinary shares in issue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REMIBEmRME ()

For the six months ended 30 June 2010 HiE — T —FF X A=+H1XEA

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. 3% - HWES KRB

Office
furniture Leasehold Construction
Landand Plant and and Motor  improve- in
buildings machinery equipment  vehicles ments  progress Total
Tk BER BAKE
EF #E  REE AE HEXE HEIR e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL FEr  FExr  FTEr  FEx  FTETL  FExn
COST BA
At 1 January 2009 “ITNFE-F—H 77,353 28,777 4,828 2,371 - 47532 160,861
Exchange realignment AR 60 40 3 2 - © 103
Additions RE - 1,787 478 101 - 8361 10,727
Transfers i 18400 21,192 - - - (39592 -
Disposals e - 77 93) - - - (170)
At 31 December 2009 “ITNFET-A=1—H 95,813 51,719 5,216 2,474 - 16299 171521
Exchange realignment B H R 691 425 23 97) 6 140 1,188
Additions RE - 1,642 3,713 175 195 2778 8,503
Acquired on acquisition of
a subsidiary (Note 35) YeBE — B 1 Al (P5E35) - - 166 687 - - 853
Transfers g2 - 204 - - 895 (1,099) -
At 30 June 2010 “T-ZF A=1H 96,504 53,990 9,118 3,239 1,006 18118 182,065
DEPRECIATION E
At 1 January 2009 “ZTNEF-F—H 16,760 8,584 1,349 1,899 - - 28592
Exchange realignment 0 5 % 13 8 2 - - - 23
Provided for the year FNEE 3,675 2,926 934 107 - - 7,642
Disposals HE - (1) © - - - (20)
At 31 December 2009 ZEENFTZA=1—H 20448 11,507 2276 2,006 - - 36237
Exchange realignment AR 157 107 18 10 - - 292
Provided for the year FREE 2,290 2,588 525 127 60 - 5,590
At 30 June 2010 “E-ZFSA=1H 20,895 14,202 2,819 2,143 60 - 42119
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 30 June 2010 “T-ZF A=1tH 73609 39,788 6,299 1,09 1,036 18118 139,946
At 31 December 2009 “EENFT-A=T-H 75365 40,212 2,940 468 - 16299 135284

BEaRMEEARAR hHHRE 2010
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 B E —E—FF X A=+H 1N A

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
At the end of the reporting period, certain owner-occupied
leasehold property interests of HK$6,834,000 (31 December 2009:
HK$7,069,000) are included in land and buildings, as in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, allocations between the land
and buildings elements could not be made reliably. The building is
situated in Hong Kong and held under medium-term lease.

The property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are depreciated over their estimated useful lives, after
taking into account their residual value, as follows:

Land and buildings 20 years or the relevant lease

term, whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery 9% - 18%
Office furniture and equipment 9% — 18%
Motor vehicles 9% - 18%

18% or the relevant lease term,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvement

As at 30 June 2010, certain buildings with carrying amount of
HK$48,863,000 (31 December 2009: HK$50,384,000) were pledged
as security for bank borrowings granted to the Group.
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17. W% ~ #BR R (&)

MRARREERREAAE SRR
BT RNEHRBPEEH - 6,834,00087T(—
ZTNF+-A=+—H :7,069,000/&7T)
METRAAEBHEENZERSEH ALY
RIET « BFANEE - APRBORE -

WE - e MR (ERTIRRIN &5 RE
RIrEER - REFTRFHFENT -

THIRIEF 20%F =B A AR
(B2 A%E)

B K ies 9%ZE18%

NN 9% Z=18%

B 9%ZE18%

e 18% 3k AR 8 7H &8
(A& RBAE)

R-ZE—ZTFXA=Z+H FEEEA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 HiE — T —FF X A=+H1XEA

18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 18. E{HE

The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise leasehold lands  AEEHFENFAE S RAIA B E AR EEFE 4
situated in the PRC held under medium term leases and are analysed #4582 fS+it - AWM ONMT ¢

for reporting purposes as follows:

At

31 December
2009
RZBEZNEF
+=—A=+—H
HK$’000
FA&T

858
35,962

Current asset mENEE
Non-current asset IEREEE

36,820

As at 30 June 2010, prepaid lease payments with carryingamountof W —-_Z —ZE XA =+H @ EEEA

HK$36,682,000 (31 December 2009: HK$36,820,000) were pledged 36,682,000 T( —EFENF+-_A=1+—

as security for bank borrowings granted to the Group. A : 36,820,000/ 70) MIEN A S EIRIES
B AEERITEEMER -

19. INVENTORIES 19. #&

At

31 December
2009
RZZETNF
+ZA=+—H
HK$'000
FAT

892,824
274,613

Raw materials R
Finished goods BURR G

1,167,437
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 B E —E—FF X A=+H 1N A

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The Group generally allows its trade customers a credit period of 30
to 90 days. A longer credit period may be granted to trade customers
with good credit quality upon the approval of management. An aged
analysis of the Group’s trade receivables at the end of the reporting
period, net of allowance for doubtful debts and based on the invoice
date, are as follows:

20. 5 R H A EWFRIE
AEE-RETESEFIENVHENEE
0o AESEEEMER  AREAREER
RERENESEFREERNEEN -1
E2RPEER - AEEE FREFIRIR R
REBROREROITREZARZIIT

At At
30 June 31 December
2010 2009

R=%-%&F R-TTNF
AB=+HE T-A=t-A

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET

Trade receivables: B RWFIA
0 - 30 days 0%230H 34,689 45,805
31 - 60 days 31£260H 1,285 13,248
61 - 90 days 61%290H 64 1,161
91 - 180 days 91%£180H 1,542 5,104
Over 180 days #BiB180R 642 564
38,222 65,882

Other receivables: H U ERIE
Deposits and prepayments %o RTENRIE 38,675 51,852

Deposits paid for purchase of HBERRZENZS

raw materials 117,528 51,774
Rental receivable JEW & = 2,123
VAT recoverable AR BB EFH 38,058 15,413
Others Hib 5,731 1,782
199,992 122,944
238,214 188,826

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Credit limits to customers are reviewed regularly. With
reference to the track records of these customers, the directors
of the Company consider all trade receivables at the end of the
reporting period are of good credit quality.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E
For the six months ended 30June 2010 HE —E—ZF NA=FTHIEAEA

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 20. EZ R HMEWRRIE ()
Included in the trade receivable balance are the following past due & 5 fEUAS 82 B335 T 71|30 4 5 (B B 1B B HE HY
debts for which no impairment loss has been provided: HHRE RS

Aging analysis of trade receivables which are past due B i@HIE R EER E 5 FE Y K IBERE
but not impaired BT

At

31 December
2009
RZTZENF
+=ZA=+—H
HK$’000
FA&T

31 - 60 days 31260H
61 - 90 days 61290H
91 - 180 days 91£E180H
Over 180 days iHBiA180H

1,463
142
660

53

2,318

The Group did not hold any collateral against the above amounts. Z’K%jﬁﬂ‘}i‘}ﬁt WK IE 2 AE ] o 2R
However, management believes that these amounts are still EEEDAENEETENEEE X
recoverable because there has not been an adverse change in the ﬁﬁgig MEzE FIE el g[E o

relevant entities’ credit quality.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RIRBENE D
At
31 December
2009
RZZETNGF
+=-A=+—8
HK$'000
FHT
Balance at beginning of the period/year HA, 4E¥)4% 553
Impairment losses recognised on %%&Eﬁﬂﬁgl& KIATERH)
trade and other receivables VERIEY GE=] 247
Amounts written off as uncollectible E=Y =R NI EE S E R (247)
Foreign exchange difference ME N =R 1
Balance at end of the period/year B R AR 554
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FEMBRERME(E
For the six months ended 30June 2010 HE —ZE—ZEF NA=THIEAEA

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts (continued)
Trade and other receivables that were denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the relevant group entities are as
follows:

20. B 5 & H b FE KRR ()

R ENEE(E)

DA RASE B A B A B AN A
B 5 RAM RN T -

At

31 December
2009
RZZTNF
+ZA=+—H
HK$’000
FAT

UsD ESS
EUR BT

21. BILLS RECEIVABLES
An aged analysis of the Group’s bills receivables at the end of the
reporting period, based on their invoice dates, are as follows:

31,598
7

21. BIRE#E
REBPLEER  AEBNERZERESS
W Z ARSI T

At

31 December
2009
RZZTNF
+=ZA=+—H
HK$’000
FA&T

0 - 30 days 0&30H
31 - 60 days 31260H
61 -90 days B61F90H
91 - 180 days 91£E180H
Over 180 days HBiA180H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
EAE M BREME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 HiE — T —FF X A=+H1XEA

22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) RELATED PARTIES

22. B (FE(Y) BRE TS 7R

At
31 December
2009
RZTZNF
+=—A=+—H
HK$'000
FHET
Amounts due from related parties FEUR F83E  FoE
Non-trade nature (note v) FE S MHE (M)
New Asset Holdings Limited New Asset Holdings Limited
(“New Asset”) (note i) ([New Asset]) (FI7i) 371
Green Elite Limited (“Green Elite”) Green Elite Limited ([ Green Elite |)
(note iii) (B -
371
Amounts due to related parties JEAT B8 5 UE
Non-trade nature (note vi) FEZMHE(HizEvi)
Delco Asia Company Limited Delco Asia Company Limited
(“Delco Asia”) (note iv) ([Delco Asial) (Mf=Fiv)
— interest bearing at 3 months —1Z3E A RBERITRIZEIFE 1%
London Interbank Offered BIE N R EBFE
Rate+1% per annum (138,376)
— non-interest bearing —%B (29,156)
Mr. Fang, his close members of TS - B RRR G B S E FTiESl
the family and entities controlled by 792 &) (P i)
him (note ii)
— interest bearing at 2.52% per annum  — IR F| &2 52%5+ E ) FI & -
— non-interest bearing —% 8 (149,381)
(816,913)
Analysed as: DITET -
Current liabilities BB E (93,205)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (223,708)
(816,913)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 2= —ZE—ZTFXH=+HIt/~EA

22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) RELATED PARTIES  22. FEUR (FE{Y) BEE 5 2

(continued)
The amounts due to related parties that are denominated in currency

%18 (&)

B RSB AR R SN BB EHER

other than the functional currency of the relevant group entities are as /(< B3sE 5 2B T ¢
follows:
At At
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
R=F—FF RN _TTIF
AA=+H +ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET THET
uSD EViH 124,948 138,455
notes: Pi5T
(i) New Asset has a non-controlling beneficial interest in the Company. () New AssetlE A AN A BRI FEILIR T w5 iER ©
(i) Mr. Fang is a director and a non-controlling beneficial shareholder of the (i) 744 ARA RN E EFRIFFEREHME -

Company.

Green Elite has a non-controlling beneficial interest in the Company.

(iii)
(iv) Mr. van Ooijen, a director of the Company, was a director and a
shareholder of Delco Asia during the period/year.

The balances at the end of the reporting period were the maximum
amount outstanding during the period. The balances represent expenses
paid by the Company on behalf of related parties. All non-trade balances
are repayable on demand.

These represent advances to finance the Group’s operations. All
the balances were unsecured. Other than an aggregate amount of
HK$223,708,000 at 31 December 2009 which was repayable after one
year, all non-trade balances are repayable on demand.

(vi
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Green EliteEE AN A R IEER E R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 HiZ —ZE—ZF A=+ HI/~EAH

23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 23. fTEE€®MIT A
At At
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
R=ZB—2H R_TTHF
AA=tH +=-H=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FHT
Derivative financial asset TTESREE
Aluminium future contracts (note i) IRHAE A (T - 1,072
Derivative financial liabilities fTEeRasE
Copper and aluminium future fRtREAE A %9 (BT e
contracts (note i) 2,632 -
Foreign currency forward contracts R ERYINE & 49 (BT &)
(note ii) 99 1,603
2,731 1,603
notes: BisE
(i) Copper and aluminium future contracts (net settlement) () SFEREREAMCTEEE)
During the period, the Group entered into copper and aluminium future B - NEEGT VIR ESL - LAEIEHR
contracts in order to manage its inventory level and its exposure to the ITFEKFEREEFRERR - RERBE
price risk of copper and aluminium. These contracts were actively traded EH ZEANNERMS ERERAE
in an active market and were measured at fair values based on unadjusted RAKAERBUATEANE - HEBRE
quoted price at the end of the reporting period, with gain or loss recognised BERGEAE RS RER -

directly in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Major terms of the outstanding copper and aluminium future contracts at NE2WMEEEH - R ES N
the end of the reporting period are set out below: EE%E{I%?XZZDT :
30 June 2010 —E-ZHFXA=1+H

Standard Unit

trading unit bought Maturity
BEEE =151

Contract price EHER By By  EHA
Aluminium future contracts: IRHEAY -
Buy at prices, ranged from BN FEEARE14,1207T 5 tonnes 280  From 15 July 2010 to
RMB14,120 to RMB15,455 = ANRH15,455 T B1% 518 16 August 2010
per tonne e BE-Z—ZFtA+HAZE
—E—TF)\A+H
Copper future contracts: HEIE A -
Buy at prices, ranged from BN T A R52,9707T 5 tonnes 80 From 15 July 2010 to
RMB52,970 to RMB55,388 = AR¥55,388 T HIEK 5 15 September 2010
per tonne EE BE-Z—ZFtA+HAZE

—E-EFAATEA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 HiE — T —FF X A=+H1XEA

23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 23. fTA€®m I A (&)
notes: BiE -

(i) Copper and aluminium future contracts (net settlement) (continued) () SFERHREAHCHELEE)(E)

31 December 2009 —EEAFE+=-HA=1+—8H

Standard Unit
trading unit bought Maturity
BEEE 2BE
Contract price ERER B By IR

Aluminium future contracts: SRHREAA ¢
Buy at prices, ranged from BN T ARE16,0987TE 5 tonnes 300  From 15 January 2010 to
RMB16,098 to RMB16,396 AR #16,396 TTHIERE 5N8E 15 March 2010
per tonne BE BE-T—ZTF—A+hAZ
—T—TF=A+HAA
(i) Foreign currency forward contracts (gross settlement) (i) =HINEGLH(BER)

REIA - NEBERT SR HIIME S K LARUESD
FEREER - ZEELALMPEEHNERHR
BEXZATEG;E  BRHPERENGA R
R R R

During the period, the Group entered into foreign currency forward
contracts in order to minimise its exposure to the foreign currency risk.
These contracts were measured at fair value using quoted forward
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period, with gain or loss
recognised directly in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.

Major terms of the foreign currency forward contracts are as follows:

30 June 2010

Notional amount

CE R

Forward contract rates

BEHSNRRE

ERINES DT 2IEFHAT ¢
—E-ZFXA=1H

Maturity
A

11 contracts to buy
USD18,417,000 in total

+—1n A £18,417,000
ETHER

31 December 2009

Notional amount

BEEH

USD1: RMB6.7423 to
RMB6.8022

1270« AR¥6.74237T
= AR¥6.80227T

Forward contract rates

BEHEHNHRRE

From 21 October 2010 to
18 November 2010
BE-E—ZF+HA=+—H
22T -TF+—HA+N\H

—2ENEFE+ZA=1—H

Maturity
F#A

13 contracts to buy
USD20,537,000 in total

+ =18 A£20,537,000
ETHELD

USD1: RMB6.7423 to
RMB6.8505

12570« AR¥6.74237T
= AR #6.85057T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 HiE — T —FF X A=+H1XEA

23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

23. TSI B (&)

Derivative financial instruments that are denominated in currency  LAMEFEBE T EH e EE NG EKETE
other than the functional currency of the relevant group entities are as ~ #4T4 St TELOT -
follows:
At At
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
R=Z—FF R_TTLHF
AA=tE +-A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FA&T
usD ETT 99 1,603

24. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/RESTRICTED BANK
DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Pledged bank deposits

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group. Deposits amounting
to HK$266,236,000 (31 December 2009: HK$241,440,000) have
been pledged to secure short-term bank borrowings and are
therefore classified as current assets. The pledged bank deposits
carry fixed interest rates as follows:

24. BIEMRITIERZREIRITE

R BITEBRRASE
2RI ER

EEBRITHFERIERBRTERU SRR
EEEREMRITHREELEROTR -
266,236,000 L (ZEZNEF+_A=1+—
H : 241,440,000 70 ) B977 5K E 3 (ER2 HA
IRITERNER  BUHEIEARBEE -
BRI IR T ESFTE ¢

At

30 June
2010
R=Z—FF
ANA=1H

At

31 December
2009
RZZEZTNF
+=—A=+—8H

R

Interest rate per annum

Restricted bank deposits
These represent deposits placed with the financial institutions to
secure the margin accounts of the Group for trading copper and
aluminium futures in the relevant financial institutions. The restricted
bank deposits are interest-free.

1.711%E2.25%

1.98%%2.25%

SR EIRTITER

ZEFFEASERDNSEMEEEHES

iin B RERP MERER S REER

7 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 HiE — T —FF X A=+H1XEA

24. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/RESTRICTED BANK
DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH (continued)
Bank balances and cash

These represent cash and short-term bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less. The bank balances carry interest
rates as follows:

24. BERBIER ZRERTE
R BITEBRRRS (F)
RITEERSIR 2
REREBER S RRIBE A=EAKMN
THSEHIRITE o RITABFIFMOT

At 30 June 2010
and

31 December 2009
R-E—FF
ANA=THK
—EZhEF
+=—HB=+—H

R

Interest rate per annum

Pledged bank deposits, restricted bank deposits and bank
balances and cash held in the PRC with an aggregate amount of
HK$308,721,000 (31 December 2009: HK$279,184,000), were
denominated in RMB and were subject to foreign exchange control.

Pledged bank deposits, restricted bank deposits and bank balances
and cash that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities are as follows:

0.36%£1.15%

EFRERBENCIIRRITER - BRHIET
TR B IRTT 45 87 M IR € 48 %8 £308,721,000
BT(ZZETEANFEF+_A=+—8H:
279,184,000/ 7C) * BEPAARBHEL F
HNEE I o

NEREEAREEE AN ERTHENE
ERRITER - ZRBIRITFHEIRITAER
KRBT

At At

30 June 31 December

2010 2009

R=Z2—FF R_ZTTF

AA=+H +=ZA=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHET FAT

usD E7T 42,925 36,696
EUR BT 83,082 358
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

A PSRRI EE ()

For the six months ended 30 June 2010 HiE — T —FF X A=+H1XEA

25.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The average credit period for trade purchases is 30 to 60 days.

The following is an aged analysis of the Group’s trade payables,
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

25. EZ R HMENRIE
BB ENTHEERHAS0E60R -

AT RAEEEZRNFAN2HPEER
RIERER DITIRERZ B2 T

At

31 December
2009
RIBEZNF
+=-A=+—A~
HK$’000
FAT

Trade payables:
0 - 30 days

31 - 60 days
61 - 90 days
91 - 180 days
Over 180 days

Other payables:

Other payables and accruals
Interest payable

Receipts in advance from customers

Trade and other payables that are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the relevant group entities are as follows:

B RNFR
0Z30H
31£260H
61Z90H
91E180H
E#3E180H

HAD R FROR

HAh e 5R N et &
FERTFILE

B EF A

64,630
18,519
8,780
8,020
1,679

101,628

23,512
918
10,547

34,977

136,605

LA RIS B2 R AL S LA SN SO B
P REMMITHERT :

At

31 December
2009
RZZETNEF
+-A=+—H
HK$'000
FAT

usSD
EUR

90,613
1,241
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
EAE M BREME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 HiE — T —FF X A=+H1XEA

26. BILLS PAYABLES
An aged analysis of the Group’s bills payables at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

26. BN ZEHE
FAEARENZHENESHNEEANEDRD
T

At

31 December
2009
RIBEZNF
+=—A=+—H
HK$’000
FAT

0 - 30 days 0Z30H
31 -60 days 31£E60H
61 —-90 days 61290H
91 - 180 days 912180H

Bills payables that are denominated in currency other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities are as follows:

8,510

22,752
82,864

114,126

NEREE AR ER AN EBTHENE
NEREOT

At

31 December
2009
RZZEZTNF
+=—A=+—H
HK$’000
FAT

uSD ETT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
EAE M BREME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 HiE — T —FF X A=+H1XEA

27. BANK BORROWINGS 27. RITEE
At
31 December
2009
R-ZZTNF
+=—RA=+—8H
HK$’000
FHET
Fixed-rate borrowings: EEEBE
Secured bank loans BEPIRITER 497,012
Unsecured bank loans EIKFRITER 125,590
Variable-rate borrowings: FEEE
Secured bank loans BRWRITER 160,639
Unsecured bank overdrafts EIKIRERI TR 15,805
799,046

The Group’s variable-rate borrowings are mainly subject to interest AEEH)Z SEET R HIERTTRERE

at London Interbank Offered Rate plus a spread of 3.45%. 13.45%5 8. ©
The effective interest rates of the borrowings are as follows: BEMNERMERAT
At
31 December
2009
RZTZNF
+=-A=+—H
HK$'000
FAT
Effective interest rate per annum: BFEERE
Fixed-rate borrowings EBEE 1.29%%5.31%
Variable-rate borrowings FEEE 1.62%%£1.82%

E&REEBRAR HEHRE 2010




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 B EZE —E—FF X A=+H1XEA

27. BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in currency other than

27. RITEE(E)

NE RSB RRIEE R ASNE R ERA

the functional currency of the relevant group entities are as follows: EEEEMT
At At
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
R=Z—FF R_TTIF
AA=tH +-A=1t—H
HK$°000 HK$’000
TExT FAT
usbD =7 1,009,236 693,371

28. DEFERRED TAX
The deferred tax (assets) liabilities recognised by the Group and

28. IEER1E

AEEERRELERE(EE) AELRERSF

movements thereon during the year/period are as follows: SHARE BT
Change in
fair value  Undistributed
Inventories  of derivative profits of
provision instruments subsidiaries Total
IR MEATN
FERE OATESE®  RKoEEA st
FHT FHET FTHET THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 January 2009 ZEENE-A—H (76,545) (5,000) - (81,545)
Charge to profit or loss for the year Rzt AIEZE 76,545 5,000 21,218 102,763
At 31 December 2009 —ZETAF+-A=t—H - - 21,218 21,218
Charge to profit or loss for AR YN
the period - 658 6,897 7,555
At 30 June 2010 “E-TFXA=tH - 658 28,115 28,773

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC, 5% withholding
income tax is imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits
earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards for
investors incorporated in Hong Kong. The aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings of PRC
subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities have been recognised
in the consolidated financial statements was HK$562,304,000 (31
December 2009: HK$424,360,000).

BIEFBECEMERE  BREBFEMK
VHWEEEME ARUNAZZTEENE—
A—B#HP B R R BRI SR
BIPE B AR5 % BITEAOATIS TS - BLE RS
SRR ERELEH BB ENEFREA
AMADRAFABENEREEZEATE S
562,304,000 L(—ETAF+_-_A=+—
B : 424,360,000/87T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

RE MR E ()

For the six months ended 30 June 2010 HiE — T —FF X A=+H 1N A

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. A
Number of
shares Amounts
B E &5
HK$
BT
Authorised: VETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 eachat ~ R-_ZZTHAE—A—BRK
1 January 2009 and ZEENF+ZA=1+—H
31 December 2009 SRREE0.01E LA T B 5,000,000 50,000
Increase on 23 June 2010 RoZT—FE XA -+ =HEh 4,995,000,000 49,950,000
At 30 June 2010 R-ZZE—FTFA=1+H 5,000,000,000 50,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITIHR ¢
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at R-_ZETNF—H—H8 -
1 January 2009, 31 December 2009 —EEANF+-_A=t+—HEK
and 30 June 2010 —E-FTFRA=1+H
SREEO0.OE T @A 100 1
HK$’000
FHET
Shown in the consolidated financial RZZE—ZTFA=Z+EK
statements at 30 June 2010 and —EENFF+_A=+—H
31 December 2009 e P E S TITN -
30. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 30. EEEHE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had pledged the
following assets to banks to secure the general banking facilities

granted to the Group:

BE  NERETAKBEZ —RIRTEER

At At
30 June 31 December
2010 2009

R=-B-—FBE N _ZTTHhF
NA=+H +-A=t+—H

REBPEER - AEECARITEFAT

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHEx FAT

Buildings (Note 17) BF(fEE17) 48,863 50,384
Prepaid lease payments (Note 18) FEFEE (MEE18) 36,682 36,820
Bank deposits (Note 24) RITFR(FI3E24) 266,236 241,440
351,781 328,644

EAREEAR AR PHHRE 2010
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 B EZE —E—FF X A=+H1XEA

31. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 31. EAREIE
At At
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
R=ZB—2H R_TTHF
ARA=tH +-A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET FET
Capital expenditure contracted for TLUREE N « SR MR E D ETAY
but not provided in the consolidated BRPEA P FERE P BED
financial statement in respect of BAEY
acquisition of property, plant and
equipment 2,386 4,776

32. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong Kong under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of an independent trustee. Under the rule of the
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the rules.
The only obligation of the Group with respect of MPF Scheme is
to make the required contributions under the scheme. No forfeited
contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable in the
future years.

The employees employed in the PRC are members of the state-
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the PRC
government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their basic payroll to the retirement benefit
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the required
contributions under the schemes.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited « Interim Report 2010

32. RIKERIETE
AEERBEARBMERERFE([REERF
BDIRGIABRMAEERRERRIAS
RS - BIESFTECEEEB 2B
HRAEH 2 BARERBEED R
B RBBRESHENRT  BEMEES
DRI BIRHE R BRI L R AT BIHER - A%
B RiE DAt & 2 - BEARIEZLA BIE
HPAFR R - WD R KA B EHRA
BB K -

RhBEREzEEAZETBRBFMEEZ
BRERERBHGE - HEMEQRER
BREEXHINE T B O LLAZERAKENE
SR BEAFRIEHRES - AEHELIR
REMET 8 2 E— B ERRE L AE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 i EZE —E—FF X A=TH 1N A

33. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 33. BEFHE
(I) Transactions () X5

During the reporting period, the Group had the following transactions  RAZ2RH - AEFEBFEFGU TR S !
with related parties:

Six months ended 30 June

BEANA=tHLEAEA

2010 2009
—2-BF TINF
Name of related party Nature of transaction HK$°000 HK$’000
BELER RHME FTET FAET
Delco Asia Interest expense
Delco Asia FERHZ 951 1,528
Mr. Fang and/or his close members of Interest expense
the family and entities
controlled by him
FEERHEITRREKRE R MBI
Hizhlr R el 614 1,017
Delco Europe B.V. (“Delco Europe”) Purchasing support service fee
(note i) expense
Delco Europe B.V.([ Delco Europe ) RS IRRSERRY
(P = 2,086
H.P.L. Metals B.V. (“HPL”) and Acquisition of Delco Europe (note ii)
SVO Company B.V. (“SVO”)
H.P.L. Metals B.V. (THPL ) & I B&Delco Europe (Pt &Fii)
SVO Company B.V. ([SVO ) 1 -
notes: PisE
() Delco Europe became a subsidiary of the Company on 1 January 2010. () Delco Europei? —E—ZF— A —HRKAEA
Further details are set out in Note 35. AIMMEB AR - FEBEHNIEESS ©
(i) On 1 January 2010, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in Delco (i) R—ZE—FF—H—H > KEE A KD T
Europe from HPL and SVO, the holding companies of a shareholder — & IR EE A 5 A% A & HPL & SVO U B Delco
of the Company, for a consideration of EUR100 in cash which was Europe® 2% 1E - REA100BUTHE S (FHE
equivalent to its net asset value at that date. #Delco EuropeidsZ BB EIEE) -

EaRtEEBRAR FHHRE 2010 89




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 HiE — T —FF X A=TH1XEA

33. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)
(I) Balances
Details of balances with related parties are set out in Note 22.

(1) Compensation of key management personnel
The directors of the Company and the five highest paid employees
are identified as key management members of the Group, details of
their compensation during the period are set out in Note 13.

(IV) Other disclosure

33. BE S B (F)
() 458
ERRAE 2 B I 22 o

() EBEEAEMS
ARFBEERRLESF RSN ATEEE
EERAS - HERERNB S EE SN
130

(IV) ELfth 57 58

At

31 December
2009
RZZETNF
+=B=+—8H
HK$’000
FAT

Personal guarantees provided by
Mr. Fang and his close members
of the family to the Group regarding
banking facilities

Amount of the above facilities
utilised by the Group

AEEMMA LMEERE

34. OPERATING LEASES
The Group as lessee

77 A BRI R R B BLIRTT
EERASERHEMEAER

449,921

259,285

34, REAE
AEBEAEEA

Six months ended 30 June
BEXA=THLXEA

2009
—ETNEF
HK$’000
FHET
(Unaudited)
(REEEZ)

Minimum lease payments paid under
operating leases during the period:

B B5 N 1 2

Plant and machinery

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited - Interim Report 2010
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 i EZE —E—FF X A=TH 1N A

34. OPERATING LEASES (continued)

The Group as lessee (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

34, REHE(E)
NEFERAMBAE)
RES|PEEH - AEBIRE TS
TR LG R T BB R B MR B R SRR K T 6
BT

At At

30 June 31 December

2010 2009

R=Z—TF R_TThF

AA=tH +=A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$’000

FEx FHET

Within one year —FR 321 227
In the second to fifth years inclusive —ERF(RIEEEME) 1,191 1,364
1,512 1,591

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for certain of its plant and machinery. Leases are negotiated for an
average term of five years with fixed rentals.

The Group as lessor

Rental income of subleasing a leasehold land in the PRC on a
temporary basis during the six months ended 30 June 2010 was
HK$1,064,000 (six months ended 30 June 2009 (unaudited):
HK$530,000). The sublease was negotiated for one year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

REHESEANEE RS TS Lz
MAE  BOKHEERSTFERS  HEE
E o

AEEEATDHEA
HE-Z-ZFXA=1tHILANEALXE
EREEE >HEAET RS KA L
1,064,000 L(BE2 T NFNA=1H
1E7NME B (RAEE4%) 530,000 7T) © D
WBEB—F °

REFMEER - AEREEBEPOEL TR
R&EEE

At At

30 June 31 December

2010 2009

R=Z—FF R_TTLF

AA=+H +TZA=+—H

HK$°000 HK$’000

FTExT FA&T

Within one year —FR = 1,062

EAREEAR AR PHHRE 2010
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 B EZE —E—FF X A=+H1XEA

35. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 35. Wi — R BB 2 F]

On 1 January 2010 (the “Acquisition Date”), the Group acquired R-_E—F&—HA—B([WEAHHE]|) @ &~
100% equity interest in Delco Europe from HPL and SVO for &£ & IAIR & KB 1008 T (2 7 491,000
consideration of EUR100 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,000) in  #7t) (8% 7 Delco Europe U i H HA )
cash, which was Delco Europe’s net asset value at the Acquisition & &R {E ) MHPLESVOU EDelco Europe
Date. HPL and SVO are the holding companies of Delco Participation ~— 2 #8R%#E - HPL&ESVO AR A A& E Delco
B.V., a shareholder of the Company. Since the Group obtained  Participation B.V.HI1EARARE - lXAEE
control over Delco Europe on the Acquisition Date, the Group U HE B HiENSDelco EuropeRIZHil#E - X
accounted for the acquisition on that date using the purchase E£EEE @ 5% A MUK ALE -
method of accounting.

The net assets acquired in the transaction are as follows: RRGFUEERFEENT ¢

Acquiree’s carrying
amount before

combination
and fair value
REBHATHIREE A
HREERAFE
HK$’000
FAT
Net assets acquired: BUEFEE -
Property, plant and equipment Y% - B RERE 853
Other receivables E b fEUGRIA 1,177
Bank balances and cash WITEBEIRE 3,982
Other payables HAbFERFRIE (1,006)
Amounts due to related parties FENBER &5 (707)
Bank borrowings HBITER (3,416)
Tax payable FES TR (882)
1
Total consideration recognised as TR A EMEN RIENBRE
other payable 1
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition IWHEEARFRERA
Cash consideration paid BfRERE -
Bank balances and cash acquired BUBRITEBREES 3,982
3,982

Delco Europe contributed approximately HK$898,000 to the Group’s B W EHEZ 2 KU Z B HIM © Delco
profit for the period between the date of acquisition and the end of  Europe /7285 B #)5% 1 B B £9898,000/& 7T °
the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

RE MR E ()

For the six months ended 30 June 2010 #{Z - &

—ZFEXA=THIAEAR

36. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

@)

©

On 12 July 2010, an amount of HK$111,854,000 due to each
of Mr. Fang and Delco Asia by subsidiaries of the Company
was assigned to the Company. Upon the completion of the
assignment, the Company capitalised the same amount as
reserve.

Pursuant to the written resolution of the shareholders of the
Company on 23 June 2010, 344,999,954, 344,999,954 and
59,999,992 shares were issued and alloted to HWH Holding
Limited, Delco Participation B.V. and Green Elite, respectively
(being a total of 749,999,900 shares) with effective from 12 July
2010, credited as fully paid up at par out of the reserve, such
shares ranking pari passu in all respects with the then existing
shares.

Pursuant to the written resolution of the shareholders of the
Company on 23 June 2010, the Company has adopted a Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme, details of which have been set out
in the paragraph headed “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme” in the
section headed “Statutory and General Information” in Appendix
VI to the Prospectus. Subsequent to 30 June 2010, 12,140,000
options were granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to
subscribe shares in the Company. These options are exercisable
over a period of three years commencing one year after the date
of listing of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange.
During the vesting period, the maximum percentages of options
exercisable are 30%, 30% and 40% for the first, second and
third year respectively. The directors of the Company are in the
process of considering and quantifying the potential impact of
the grant of share options.

On 12 July 2010, 250,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each of the
Company were issued at HK$2.43 by way of global offering. On
the same date, the shares of the Company were listed on the
Stock Exchange. The gross proceeds received from the global
offering was approximately HK$607,500,000.

36. /HREHIREIE
@ R=ZE—ZFFELA+=H  ~RAMH
BRARD R4 R E KDelco Asial

@ R=F—

111,854,000/ LB S EAAR] - AT
REEE  ARABHERESEERLE
o815 -

BREBEARABRER-Z N A
-t= ELﬂmiﬁﬁﬁﬂ'E%ﬁ

# BIEHWH Holding Limited * Delco
Participation B.V. X% Green EliteZ517 M fig
% 344,999,954 f% - 344,999,954 % K&
59,999,992 I 1% H B A BR 5 B 8T 7Y AR
17 (& $£749,099,000/%) - BT —ZF
+tA+TZHAR  ZERHEIELES
FHESEERIRERNDEZERSER -

e /NS B —ZTF KA

—t=HB uméﬁﬁﬁﬁ PiN/NEI B
MERX A AFAEESABRERTE - F15
IR BERERMBEADEER —KE
B —8 XA ER B ETE
—B-R-_ZE—ZTFA=ZTHE
BEERX ARSI BRETSRD
12,140,000 17 f& X #E A RIE AR A Al 8y
H - ZEBRETREADRKRGR
B3P 70 B HR1E — F BT A = F HAR
1F - REFBEIR » AT R EN R
SEADHRE—  F_NE=ZFENRA
30% * 30% K 40% ° NAFIEBIEEE
MEMRHBRERNBESZ -

SELAT-ABEBRHRBE
77 1% 2437 LB B 1% 3£17250,000,000
BN B AL EO.OTE TR - K
BH  AAEMRMREEZATET - 2
BRESE A5 FUB 42584 £607,500,000/%8
5T o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 B EZE —E—FF X A=+H1XEA

37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 37. A GIM B A 5515

COMPANY
Issued and
Place and date fully paid share
of incorporation/ capital/registered
establishment capital Attributable equity interest
Name of subsidiary Rt BRITRER held by the Group Principal activities
WELRER Rt ERAH &/ EMRA rRESEERAER TEXH
At At
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
R=B-BF RN_TTNF
AA=+H TZA=1+—H
Chiho-Tiande International Limited ~ British Virgin Islands US$2 100% 100% Investment holding
(“CT International’) (note () 2 April 2008 2FET REER
BaRtERARAT RERUES
(TEAER (M) —ZR\FMAZH
Hefast Holding Corporation Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$100,000 100% 100% Investment holding and
20 December 2002 100,000 7T purchasing agent of
B the Group
“ER-F4-ACTH REBRRASENRE
e
Chiho-Tiande (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Purchasing agent of the
EAXM(ES)BRAF 12 May 2004 18T Group and wholesales
BE of metal scrap without
“TEMERATZA processing
TERENRBRERAL
MIEeEHSE
Chiho-Tiande Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
BaRMREARRAT 16 July 2008 10,0008 7T REER
BB
“ZZ\FtATRA
Chiho-Tiande (Hong Kong) Copper ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Industry Company Limited 15 June 2009 10,000/87C REER
(“CT HK (Copper)) B
BEAR(ER)REERAR “ETNERATRA
(IB&EERE])
Taizhou Chiho-Tiande Metals The PRC US$22,682,000 100% 100% Processing and sales of
Company Limited (note (iif) 24 December 1999 22,682,000% 7T metal scrap, production
ANBEERNEBERDA e and sales of metal
(B i) “NMNETZAZ1+HA products
MIRFERES  £ER
HECBEM
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBERRME(E)
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 i EZE —E—FF X A=TH 1N A

37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 37. XA 3B AT (4E)
COMPANY (continued)

Issued and
Place and date fully paid share
of incorporation/ capital/registered
establishment capital Attributable equity interest
Name of subsidiary Rt ERTRAR held by the Group Principal activities
WEARER [oR:cty 3=k Rx/ERRE FEEMSEERTER TEEH
At At
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
R=B-2F H_TTNF
AA=TH T-A=t+—H
Taizhou Chiho-Tiande Foundry The PRC US$7,500,000 100% 100% Processing and sales of
Company Limited (note (iif) 8 December 2003 7,500,000%7¢ metal scrap, production
aNEaREEERAR il and sales of metal
(B (i) “EZ-F+-ANH products
MIRFERES - £ER
HECEEM
Chiho-Tiande (Ningbo) Metals The PRC US$3,000,000 100% 100% Processing and sales of
Recycling Company Limited (note 28 September 2008 3,000,000%7T metal scrap
(i) HE MIREEREE
EaXi(ZR)BELE “EEN\FRAZTNR
BRRR (KL (i)
Chiho-Tiande (Ningbo) Copper The PRC Nil N/A 100% Trading of metal scrap
Industry Co., Limited 5 August 2009 z TER EERE
(“CT Copper (Ningbo)”)
(notes (i) and (ii)
BaXm(ER) HEERAT e
(IBARE(ER) ) (ML) —TTAFNARA
Delco Europe (note (iv)) The Netherlands EUR18,151 100% N/A Purchasing agent of the
Delco Europe (A (v)) 18 January 1985 18,151B0T Group
G TER  ARERRERRE
—W\RE—R+/\H
notes: BT -

() The Company holds CT International directly and all other subsidiaries () AAFEEREEL R LEEREMAELE

indirectly. B AR

(i) CT Copper (Ningbo) was established on 5 August 2009 in the PRC as (i) BAWZE(BF)R-_ZZTAF/\BABRF
a wholly owned subsidiary of CT HK (Copper). CT Copper (Ningbo) was B ABEBARENZEMB AR - &
deregistered on 9 June 2010. GRE(FR)R_ZE—TFXANAEET

[

(i) These entities are wholly-foreign owned enterprise established in the (i) ZZEFiE AN PEIRK TR B EE -
PRC.

(iv) On 1 January 2010, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in Delco  (v) R-ZE—ZTF—F—H - KEB L1008 T
Europe from HPL and SVO, the holding companies of a shareholder (FHERERZENEEFAE) BERERAN
of the Company, for a consideration of EUR100 in cash which was N AERR A FIHPL K SVOUkEEDelco Europefy
equivalent to its net asset value at that date. 2 ERARAE -
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This report is published in both English and Chinese languages. Should there — N IRE&E L P2 X EZE & HIE - 7 FE X BB
be any inconsistency between the Chinese and English versions, the English B _F 7 FFIEEERF » A X G -
version shall prevail.
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